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State of Kansas
Department of Administration

Division of Facilities Management
Notice of Commencement of

Negotiations for Engineering Services

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of nego-
tiations for upgrades to the electrical distribution system
at Winfield Correctional Facility. The scope of work is as
follows:

— A new 12,470 volt normal power distribution
duct bank to serve the auditorium, Fern, staff de-
velopment and maintenance buildings. This duct
bank will have new step down transformers at
the buildings. Normal power also will be pro-
vided to the Kansas Veterans’ Home.

— A new 12,470 volt preferred power distribution
duct bank will serve Pinecrest, Garland, Cedar
View, administration, warehouse, and laundry
and power plant buildings. This duct bank will
connect to the automatic transfer switch and re-
ceive power from the emergency generator in the
power plant.

— The project will be phased over five years. Design
and Phase I will be completed in fiscal year 2004.

An additional phase will be completed each fiscal
year. The estimated construction cost for all
phases is $1,206,000.

For more information concerning the scope of services,
contact Mike Gaito, Director of Capitol Improvements,
(785) 296-0883.

If interested, an original and six copies (seven total) of
the SF255 form and all relevant information regarding
similar projects should be submitted. Also, a CD with the
proposal in one PDF file is preferred and should be sub-
mitted. Each submittal should include an e-mail address,
be concise and follow the State Building Advisory Com-
mission guidelines, which have previously been distrib-
uted to firms. If copies of the guidelines are required, con-
tact Phyllis Fast, Division of Facilities Management,
Room 600, Landon State Office Building, 900 S.W. Jack-
son, Topeka, 66612, (785) 296-5796. Submittals not com-
plying with the guidelines will not be considered.

Expressions of interest and the SF255 submittals should
be received by Phyllis Fast before 5 p.m. December 5.

D. Keith Meyers
Director, Division of

Facilities Management
Doc. No. 030074
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State of Kansas
State Employees Health Care Commission

Notice of Meeting

The State Employees Health Care Commission will
meet at 1:30 p.m. Wednesday, December 3, in the board-
room of the offices of the Kansas Public Employees Re-
tirement System, 611 S. Kansas Ave., Topeka. An agenda
may be viewed by accessing the commission’s Web site
at http://da.state.ks.us./hcc/meetings.htm. For more infor-
mation, contact the Benefits Office at (785) 296-6280.

Howard R. Fricke
Chair

Doc. No. 030083

State of Kansas
Department of Administration

Division of Purchases
Notice to Bidders

Sealed bids for items listed will be received by the Di-
rector of Purchases until 2 p.m. on the date indicated. For
more information, call (785) 296-2113:

12/01/2003 06830 Basic Clothing
12/02/2003 06828 Hot Applied Pavement Crack

Sealants
12/02/2003 06831 Various Paint Resins
12/02/2003 06835 Immunization Provider Outreach

Services
12/02/2003 06837 Seasonal Clothing
12/02/2003 06843 Ethanol Alcohol
12/03/2003 06832 Organic Yellow Pigment
12/03/2003 06834 Unassembled Chair Kits
12/04/2003 06833 Germicidal Detergent
12/04/2003 06846 Data Entry Services
12/05/2003 06839 Abandoned Well Plugging—

Hester Lease
12/05/2003 06841 Abandoned Well Plugging—

Seaborn—Roe Lease
12/05/2003 06844 Janitorial Services—Topeka
12/09/2003 06750 Refuse Collection Services—Topeka

Area Agencies

The above referenced bid documents can be down-
loaded at the following Web site:

http://da.state.ks.us/purch/rfq/
Additional files may be located at the following Web

site (please monitor this Web site on a regular basis for
any changes/addenda):

http://da.state.ks.us/purch/adds/default/htm
The following bid documents may be obtained by call-

ing (785) 296-8899:
12/11/2003 A-9694 Window Replacement—

Cottonwood and Honey Bee Lodges
12/11/2003 A-9698 Ceiling Replacement—Pleasantview
12/11/2003 A-9775 Cedar Bluffs State Park Office—

Trego

Keith Meyers
Director of Purchases

Doc. No. 030084

State of Kansas
Pooled Money Investment Board

Notice of Investment Rates

The following rates are published in accordance with
K.S.A. 75-4210. These rates and their uses are defined in
K.S.A. 12-1675(b)(c)(d), 75-4201(l) and 75-4209(a)(1)(B).

Effective 11-17-03 through 11-23-03

Term Rate

1-89 days 0.99%
3 months 0.93%
6 months 1.03%
1 year 1.25%
18 months 1.48%
2 years 1.82%

Derl S. Treff
Director of Investments

Doc. No. 030060

State of Kansas
Department of Administration

Division of Facilities Management
Notice of Commencement of Negotiations for

Architectural and Engineering Services

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of nego-
tiations for on-call architectural and engineering services
for the State of Kansas, Division of Facilities Manage-
ment. Services are required for small projects and con-
tracts are for one year, renewable for two additional one-
year periods. The following services are sought:

— Two on-call civil engineers.
— One on-call architect.
— One on-call mechanical/electrical engineer.

For more information concerning the scope of services,
contact Dan Balch, Facilities Operations Manager, (785)
296-2202.

If interested, an original and six copies (seven total) of
the SF255 form and all relevant information regarding
similar projects should be submitted. Also, a CD with the
proposal in one PDF file is preferred and should be sub-
mitted. Each submittal should include an e-mail address,
be concise and follow the State Building Advisory Com-
mission guidelines, which have previously been distrib-
uted to firms. If copies of the guidelines are required, con-
tact Phyllis Fast, Division of Facilities Management,
Room 600, Landon State Office Building, 900 S.W. Jack-
son, Topeka, 66612, (785) 296-5796. Submittals not com-
plying with the guidelines will not be considered.

Expressions of interest and the SF255 submittals should
be received by Phyllis Fast before 5 p.m. December 5.

D. Keith Meyers
Director, Division of

Facilities Management

Doc. No. 030075
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State of Kansas
Legislature

Interim Committee Schedule

The following committee meetings have been scheduled during the period of November 20-December 5. Requests for
accommodation to participate in committee meetings should be made at least two working days in advance of the
meeting by contacting Legislative Administrative Services at (785) 296-2391 or TTY (785) 296-8430. When available,
agendas can be found at http://kslegislature.org/klrd.

Date Room Time Committee Agenda

Nov. 20 123-S 10:00 a.m. Capitol Restoration Commission Agenda not available.

Nov. 20 123-S 2:00 p.m. Legislative Coordinating
Council

Legislative matters.

Nov. 20 241-N 10:00 a.m. Joint Committee on
Administrative Rules and
Regulations

Review rules and regulations
proposed for adoption by: KDHE;
Dept. of Agriculture—Div. of
Water Resources; Dept. of Revenue;
Dept. of Commerce; Behavioral
Sciences Regulatory Bd.; Bd. of
Technical Professions; Bd. of
Regents; and SRS.
Meeting scheduled for Nov. 21
cancelled.

Nov. 20 514-S 1:30 p.m. Kansas Finance Council Agenda not available.

Nov. 20
Nov. 21

313-S
313-S

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

Select Committee on School
Finance

20th: Presentation of school finance
plans.

Nov. 21 519-S 9:00 a.m. Health Insurance Issues
Working Group

Agenda not available.

Nov. 24 241-N 10:00 a.m. Special Committee on Judiciary a.m.—Hearings on Topic 5—
Kansas Surety Recovery Agents
Act.
p.m.—Committee discussion and
final decisions on Topic 5 and other
topics.

Nov. 24
Nov. 25

123-S
123-S

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

Joint Committee on Corrections
and Juvenile Justice Oversight

Agenda not available.

Nov. 25 313-S 9:30 a.m. School-Based Budget Working
Group

Agenda not available.

Dec. 1
Dec. 2

519-S
519-S

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

Joint Committee on Pensions,
Investments and Benefits

Agenda not available.

Dec. 1 Holton 10:00 a.m. Joint Committee on State-Tribal
Relations

Agenda not available.

Dec. 3 123-S 10:00 a.m. Special Committee on Judiciary Agenda not available.

Dec. 4
Dec. 5

123-S
123-S

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

Joint Committee on State
Building Construction

Agenda not available.

Dec. 4
Dec. 5

423-S
423-S

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

Joint Committee on Information
Technology

Agenda not available.

Dec. 4 514-S 9:00 a.m. Legislative Educational Planning
Committee

Agenda not available.

Dec. 5 514-S 9:00 a.m. Health Insurance Issues
Working Group

Agenda not available.

Jeff Russell
Director of Legislative

Administrative Services
Doc. No. 030078
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State of Kansas
Wildlife and Parks Commission

Notice of Meeting

A public meeting will be conducted by the Wildlife and
Parks Commission at 1:30 p.m. Thursday, January 22, at
the Kansas State Historical Society, 6425 S.W. 6th Ave.,
Topeka, to consider proposed changes to big game ad-
ministrative regulations of the Kansas Department of
Wildlife and Parks.

A workshop meeting on business of the Wildlife and
Parks Commission will begin at 1:30 p.m. January 22 at
the above location. The meeting will recess at 5 p.m., then
resume at 7 p.m. at the same location for the rest of the
workshop meeting. There will be public comment periods
at the beginning of the afternoon and evening meetings
for any issues not on the agenda, and additional comment
periods will be available during the meeting on agenda
items. Old and new business also may be discussed at
this time. If necessary to complete the workshop or other
business matters, the commission will reconvene at 9 a.m.
January 23 at the same location.

Any individual with a disability may request accom-
modation in order to participate in the public meeting
and may request the proposed regulations and economic
impact statements in an accessible format, if applicable.
Requests for accommodation should be made at least five

working days in advance of the meeting by contacting
Sheila Kemmis, commission secretary, at (620) 672-5911.
Persons with a hearing impairment may call the Kansas
Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing at 1-800-
432-0698 to request special accommodations.

This notice period prior to the workshop constitutes a
public comment period for the purpose of receiving writ-
ten public comments on proposed changes to the admin-
istrative regulations.

All interested parties may submit written comments
prior to the workshop meeting to the chairman of the
commission, Kansas Department of Wildlife and Parks,
1020 S. Kansas Ave., Suite 200, Topeka, 66612. All inter-
ested parties will be given a reasonable opportunity at
the hearing to express their views orally in regard to the
adoption of the proposed regulations. During the hear-
ing, all written and oral comments submitted by inter-
ested parties will be considered by the commission as a
basis for approving, amending and approving, or reject-
ing the proposed regulations.

There will be no regulatory hearing period in the eve-
ning.

John R. Dykes
Chairman

Doc. No. 030061

State of Kansas
Office of Judicial Administration

Supreme Court Docket
(Note: Dates and times of arguments are subject to change.)

Monday, December 8, 2003
9:00 a.m.

Case No. Case Name Attorneys Jurisdiction

90,578 State, ex rel. Phill Kline, Appellant,
v.

Unified Government of Wyandotte
County, Appellee.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Mary Feighny
Harold T. Walker

Wyandotte

89,655 Joseph L. Natalini, Appellee,
v.

Blake A. Little, M.D., Appellant.

Fred Spigarelli
Charles H. Stitt

Bourbon

89,153 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Brandon C. Boone, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Debra S. Peterson, Asst. Dist. Atty.
Randall L. Hodgkinson, Deputy

Appellate Defender

Sedgwick

89,707 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Frank Wilkins, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Debra S. Peterson, Asst. Dist. Atty.
Korey A. Kaul, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Sedgwick

1:30 p.m.

89,934 In the Matter of the Appeal of the City of
Wichita from an Order of the Division
of Taxation on an Assessment of Sales
Tax.

Gary E. Rebenstorf
Richard L. Cram

Tax Appeal

89,033 John D. Bruner, Appellant,
v.

State of Kansas, Appellee.

Elizabeth Seale Cateforis
Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Debra S. Peterson, Asst. District Atty.

Sedgwick

(continued)
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89,127 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Tuan C. Huynh, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Debra S. Peterson, Asst. District Atty.
Mary Curtis, Asst. Appellate Defender

Sedgwick

90,558 Manford Cooper, Appellee,
v.

Roger Werholtz, Appellant.

Charles J. Cavenee
Kenneth R. Smith

Leavenworth

Tuesday, December 9, 2003
9:00 a.m.

Case No. Case Name Attorneys Jurisdiction

89,217 Robert J. Gaudina, Appellant,
v.

State of Kansas, Appellee.

Stephen B. Chapman
Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Paul J. Morrison, District Atty.

Johnson

87,519 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Shawndell Mays, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Michael G. Highland

Wyandotte

89,651 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Peter J. Davis, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Forrest A. Lowry

Wyandotte

89,056 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Donald C. Young, Jr., Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Mary Curtis, Asst. Appellate Defender

Wyandotte

1:30 p.m.

87,252 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Ronell Williams, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Patrick H. Dunn, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Wyandotte

88,085 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Gordon R. Martis, Jr., Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Debra J. Wilson, Capital Appellate

Defender

Wyandotte

89,204 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Reginald Meeks, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nick A. Tomasic, District Atty.
Sandra M. Carr, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Wyandotte

89,336 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

James Edward VanHouten, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
JoAnna L. Derfelt, County Atty.
Libby K. Snider, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Cherokee

Wednesday, December 10, 2003
9:00 a.m.

Case No. Case Name Attorneys Jurisdiction

86,899 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Lisa J. Graham, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Ellen H. Mitchell, County Atty.

Petition for Review
Korey A. Kaul, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Saline

89,239 Dennis Foos, Appellee,
v.

Terminex and Zurich American Insurance,
Appellants.

Roger D. Fincher
Petition for Review

Rex W. Henoch

Work Comp

89,010 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Anthony Groves, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Chris E. Biggs, County Atty.

Petition for Review
Debra J. Wilson, Capital Appellate

Defender

Geary
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88,603 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Michael Abbott, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Keith E. Schroeder, District Atty.

Petition for Review
Patrick H. Dunn, Asst. Appellate

Defender

Reno

1:30 p.m.

89,037 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Jacquilyn J. Huff, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Debra S. Peterson, Asst. District Atty.

Petition for Review
Steven R. Zinn, Deputy Appellate

Defender

Sedgwick

89,303 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Scott E. Manbeck, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Nanette L. Kemmberly-Weber, County

Atty.
Petition for Review

Steven R. Zinn, Deputy Appellate
Defender

Allen

88,139 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Brian Keith McAdam, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
Frederick B. Campbell, County Atty.

Petition for Review
Randall L. Hodgkinson, Deputy

Appellate Defender

Anderson

Thursday, December 11, 2003
9:00 a.m.

Case No. Case Name Attorneys Jurisdiction

90,039 Audie Dragon, et al., Appellees,
v.

Vanguard Industries, Inc., et al.,
Appellants.

Rex A. Sharp
Casey R. Law
William H. Seiler, Jr.

McPherson

88,650 State of Kansas, Appellee,
v.

Joseph Andrew Hayden, Appellant.

Phillip D. Kline, Atty. Gen.
John K. Bork, Asst. Atty. Gen.
Robert Kuchar

Franklin

91,009 In the Matter of Troy L. Daugherty,
Respondent.

Alexander M. Walczak, Deputy Discip.
Admin.

Troy Daugherty, Pro Se

Original

91,088 In the Matter of Robert A. Levy,
Respondent.

Alexander M. Walczak, Deputy Discip.
Admin.

Thomas J. Berscheidt
Robert A. Levy, Pro Se

Original

91,089 In the Matter of Benjamin C. Wood,
Respondent.

Stanton A. Hazlett, Discip. Admin.
Benjamin C. Wood, Pro Se

Original

Friday, December 12, 2003

Summary Disposition of Sentencing Appeals—No Oral Argument
Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 7.041(a)

89,216
89,552
90,029
90,153/
90,154

State v. Craig Edward Bjerke
State v. Stephen K. Barker
State v. Shon T. Schaller
State v. David M. Payne

90,227
90,337
90,361
90,416

State v. James C. Bailey
State v. Walter D. Hammer
State v. Melissa Stanford
State v. Wayne S. Barnes

90,422
90,424
90,602
90,618

State v. Gregory Holscher
State v. Phillip McGuckin
State v. Joshua D. Lyons
State v. Juan Jesus Gamilla

Carol G. Green
Clerk of the Appellate Courts

Doc. No. 030062
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State of Kansas
Kansas Water Authority

Notice of Meeting

The Kansas Water Authority will meet at 9 a.m. Tues-
day, November 25, at the Best Western Airport Inn, 6815
W. Kellogg, Wichita. Among the topics to be discussed:

* Public comments received at public hearings on call-
ing into service remaining water storage in Perry and
Milford Lakes and bonding authority for water infra-
structure development.

* A discussion of the Edwards County Circle K Ranch
basin issue and possible future public hearing.

* Updates on background papers being prepared on
reservoir protection and restoration, alternative ways
to resolve natural resource conflicts, and ground-
water marketing.

A complete agenda can be found on the Kansas Water
Office’s Web site, www.kwo.org, or may be obtained by
calling the Kansas Water Office at (888) KAN-WATER.

Joseph Harkins, Director
Kansas Water Office

Doc. No. 030048

State of Kansas
Social and Rehabilitation Services

Request for Proposals

The Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services
announces the release of a request for proposals by the
Children and Family Policy Division to offer assistance
to youth involved in the state Chafee Foster Care Inde-
pendence Program in obtaining proficiency in the use of
a computer and computer programs.

The vendor will offer three ‘‘Weekend Computer
Camps’’ on separate weekends for a total of 60 youth
identified by SRS. The camp will offer 21⁄2 days of training
by certified instructors on using the computer and com-
puter program to enhance the youth’s education and also
provide skills to help obtain meaningful employment.
Each participant will receive from the vendor the follow-
ing: a laptop computer; a color ink-jet printer; 21⁄2 days of
training and the software in Microsoft Word, Excel and
PowerPoint; Internet connectivity for one year; one e-mail
account; and two nights accommodations, six meals, and
a cinema ticket for Saturday evening entertainment.

Vendors interested in receiving a request for proposals
should contact Deanne Dinkel at the SRS Central Office,
5th Floor South, Docking State Office Building, 915 S.W.
Harrison, Topeka, 66612, (785) 368-8184 or fax (785) 368-
8159. Complete proposals must be received not later than
5 p.m. January 5.

Janet Schalansky
Secretary of Social and
Rehabilitation Services

Doc. No. 030035

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Notice Concerning Kansas

Water Pollution Control Permits

In accordance with Kansas Administrative Regulations
28-16-57 through 63, 28-18-1 through 15, 28-18a-1 through
32, 28-16-150 through 154, 28-46-7, and the authority
vested with the state by the administrator of the U.S. En-
vironmental Protection Agency, draft permits have been
prepared and/or permit applications have been received
for discharges to the waters of the United States and the
State of Kansas for the class of discharges described be-
low.

The determinations for permit content are based on
staff review, applying the appropriate standards, regu-
lations and effluent limitations of the State of Kansas and
the EPA, and when issued will result in a State Water
Pollution Control Permit and National Pollutant Dis-
charge Elimination System Authorization subject to cer-
tain conditions.

All Kansas Department of Health and Environment
district office addresses and telephone numbers are listed
below.

Public Notice No. KS-AG-03-283/286
Pending Permits for Confined Feeding Facilities

Name and Address
of Applicant

Legal
Description

Receiving
Water

Bryan Mosier
814 S.E. 50 Road
Ellinwood, KS 67526

SW/4 of Section 09,
T20S, R11W,
Barton County

Upper Arkansas
River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-UABT-B002
This is a new permit for construction of a sedimentation basin and two

dedicated grass filter strips at an existing facility for 800 head (800
animal units) of beef cattle weighing greater than 700 pounds.

Soil sampling and analysis shall be conducted on soils from fields de-
termined by the department to be located in a sensitive groundwater
area and that have received manure or wastewater within the five-
year permit cycle.

Wastewater will be dispersed onto bromegrass agricultural land for
beneficial use. Wastewater detention and infiltration area are pro-
vided that meets or exceeds KDHE minimum requirements. The ma-
nure/waste management plan developed by the designer and ap-
proved by the department shall be adhered to pursuant to K.A.R.
28-18-12 and 13.

Name and Address
of Applicant

Legal
Description

Receiving
Water

Nelson Poultry Farms, Inc.
8530 E. Highway 24
Manhattan, KS 66502-8663

NW/4 of Section 13,
T08S, R03E, Clay
County

Lower Republican
River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-LRCY-P001 Federal Permit No. KS0080489
This is a permit renewal and downsizing for an existing facility. The

facility was previously permitted for 186,000 layers [5,544 animal
units (a.u.)]. The new permit is for a maximum of 79,000 head (2,607
a.u.) of layers. The reconstruction and downsizing of the waste con-
trol system will require the submittal of as-built drawings indicating
the reconstruction and modifications performed and is to include
the drainage area that is served by the waste control system and
composting area details including the run-on and run-off control
features.

Soil sampling and analysis shall be conducted on soils from fields de-
termined by the department to be located in a sensitive groundwater
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area and that have received manure or wastewater within the five-
year permit cycle.

Wastewater will be impounded for subsequent application to agricul-
tural land for beneficial use. Wastewater storage capacity is provided
that meets or exceeds KDHE minimum requirements. The manure/
waste management plan developed by the designer and approved
by the department shall be adhered to as a condition of the permit.

Reconstruction and downsizing of the waste control system shall be
started within six months of the effective date of the permit.

Permeability tests shall be conducted on the earthen wastewater reten-
tion in the embankment area between the two-cell lagoon structure,
in the area being reconstructed. Permeability tests shall be completed
after the soil liner(s) have been compacted and prior to placing the
earthen wastewater retention structure(s) into service.

Name and Address
of Applicant

Legal
Description

Receiving
Water

Overmiller Farms, Inc.
Route 2, Box 133
Smith Center, KS 66967

SE/4 of Section 36,
T01S, R13W, Smith
County

Solomon River
Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-SOSM-S008
This is a renewal permit for an existing facility for a correction in head

capacity from 943 head (377 animal units) of swine weighing more
than 55 pounds to a maximum of 1,010 head (101 animal units) of
swine weighing 55 pounds or less and a maximum of 948 head (379.2
animal units) of swine weighing more than 55 pounds, for a total of
1,958 head (480.2 animal units). The permit also includes a descrip-
tion of the existing swine mortality composting operation that was
not described on previous permits.

Wastewater will be impounded for subsequent application to agricul-
tural land for beneficial use. Wastewater storage capacity is provided
that meets or exceeds KDHE minimum requirements. The manure/
waste management plan developed by the designer and approved
by the department shall be adhered to pursuant to K.A.R. 28-18a-12
and 19.

Within one year from the effective date of the permit, the floor of the
mortality composting bunkers shall be concreted or the hydraulic
conductivity of a representative plug sample of the floor material
shall be evaluated and a work plan for upgrading the floor as needed
to comply with K.A.R. 28-29-25d shall be submitted to the depart-
ment for approval.

Name and Address
of Applicant

Legal
Description

Receiving
Water

Dale Springer - Main Farm
c/o Dale Springer
5816 County Road 3300
Independence, KS 67301

NW/4 of Section 23,
T31S, R15E,
Montgomery
County

Verdigris River
Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-VEMG-H009 Federal Permit No. KS0085448
This is a new permit for an expansion and construction modification of

an existing facility. The facility is expanding from 4,100 head (1,640
animal units) of swine weighing greater than 55 pounds to a maxi-
mum total of 5,630 head (2,252 animal units) of swine weighing
greater than 55 pounds, and for a maximum of 3,252 head (325.2
animal units) of swine weighing 55 pounds or less. The previous
permit did not list the total number of swine weighing 55 pounds
or less. Due to a change in the method of determining the animal
unit capacity of the facility, they are now included and are reflected
in the revised animal unit count. The expansion of the facility con-
sists of the addition of a 300-head gestation building and accounting
for the swine in the open lots, which was left off of the previous
permit. The construction modification of the facility is the addition
of a mortality compost building.

Wastewater will be impounded for subsequent application to agricul-
tural land for beneficial use. Wastewater storage capacity is provided
that meets or exceeds KDHE minimum requirements.

Public Notice No. KS-03-173/178
Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Abilene, City of
P.O. Box 519
Abilene, KS 67410

Smoky Hill River Treated Domestic
Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-SH01-OO01 Federal Permit No. KS0051942

Legal: NE1⁄4, NW1⁄4, NW1⁄4, S27S, T13S, R2E, Dickinson County
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for operation of an existing wastewater treatment facility treating
primarily domestic wastewater. The proposed permit is based upon
an average discharge flow of 1.26 MGD to the Smoky Hill River.
This facility is a mechanical treatment plant consisting of primary
clarifiers, first- and second-stage trickling filters, with intermediate
clarifiers, final clarifiers, UV disinfection and anaerobic digestion of
sludge. The facility receives domestic wastewater from residential
and commercial areas and industrial wastewater from local manu-
facturers. The proposed permit contains limits for biochemical
oxygen demand, total suspended solids, ammonia, fecal coliform
and pH. Monitoring for total phosphorus, Kjeldahl nitrogen, nitrate,
nitrite, chlorides, sulfates and effluent flow will be required. In ad-
dition, the permittee is required to conduct a chronic whole effluent
toxicity test annually, and a priority pollutant scan will be required
at least once during the life of this permit. A schedule of compliance
referencing a proposed administrative order requiring the permittee
to upgrade or replace the existing treatment facility, as necessary to
meet the permit limits, is included in this permit. The permit require-
ments are pursuant to the Kansas Surface Water Quality Standards,
K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f), and Federal Surface Water Criteria, and are wa-
ter-quality based.

Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Galesburg, City of
P.O. Box 65
Galesburg, KS 66740

Labette Creek via
Unnamed Tributary

Treated Domestic
Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-NE29-OO02 Federal Permit No. KS0092193
Legal: SE1⁄4, SE1⁄4, SE1⁄4, S31, T29S, R19E, Neosho County
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for operation of an existing wastewater treatment facility treating
primarily domestic wastewater. The proposed permit includes limits
for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids and pH.
Monitoring of fecal coliform, ammonia and phosphorus also will be
required. The permit requirements are pursuant to the Kansas Sur-
face Water Quality Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f), and Federal Sur-
face Water Criteria, and are technology based.

Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Highland, City of
P.O. Box 387
Highland, KS 66035

Mission Creek Treated Domestic
Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-MO09-OO01 Federal Permit No. KS0047457
Legal: SE1⁄4, S23, T2S, R19E, Doniphan County
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for operation of an existing wastewater treatment facility treating
primarily domestic wastewater. The proposed permit includes limits
for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids and pH.
Monitoring for fecal coliform and ammonia also will be required.
Included in this permit is a schedule of compliance requiring the
permittee to obtain the services of a KDHE-certified wastewater
treatment plant operator to achieve compliance with this permit. The
permit requirements are pursuant to the Kansas Surface Water Qual-
ity Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f), and Federal Surface Water Cri-
teria, and are technology based.

Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Valley Falls, City of
421B Mary St.
Valley Falls, KS 66088

Lake Perry via
Delaware River

Treated Domestic
Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. M-KS73-OO01 Federal Permit No. KS0022543
Legal: E1⁄2, SW1⁄4, and W1⁄2, SE1⁄4, S19, T8S, R18E, Jefferson County
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for operation of an existing wastewater treatment facility treating
primarily domestic wastewater. The proposed permit includes limits
for biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended solids, fecal coli-
form and pH. Monitoring for ammonia also will be required. The
permit requirements are pursuant to the Kansas Surface Water Qual-

(continued)
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ity Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f), and Federal Surface Water Cri-
teria, and are water-quality based.

Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Nelson Quarries, Inc.
P.O. Box 124
LaHarpe, KS 66751

Neosho River via
Unnamed Tributary

Pit Dewatering &
Stormwater
Runoff

Kansas Permit No. I-NE07-PO03 Federal Permit No. KS0082589
Legal: SE1⁄4, NW1⁄4 and SW1⁄4, NE1⁄4, S24, T21S, R15E, Coffey County
Facility Name: Burlington Quarry
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for the discharge of wastewater during quarry operation. This facil-
ity is a limestone quarry and crushing operation with no washing.
The proposed permit includes generic water quality language to pro-
tect waters of the state. The permit requirements are pursuant to the
Kansas Surface Water Quality Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f), and
Federal Surface Water Criteria, and are water-quality based.

Name and Address
of Applicant Waterway

Type of
Discharge

Wade Quarries
P.O. Box 38
LaCygne, KS 66080

Elm Creek via
Unnamed Tributary

Pit Dewatering &
Stormwater
Runoff

Kansas Permit No. I-MC18-PO10 Federal Permit No. KS0097322
Legal: Section 32, Township 19S, Range 23E, Linn County
Facility Name: Cadmus Quarry
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for the discharge of wastewater during quarry operation. This facil-
ity is a limestone quarry and crushing operation that occasionally
washes rock. Outfall 001 consists of treated washwater from three
settling ponds in a series that receives wash water and stormwater
runoff from plant area. The proposed permit contains limits for total
suspended solids and pH. The permit requirements are pursuant to
the Kansas Surface Water Quality Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-f),
and Federal Surface Water Criteria, and are water-quality based.

Public Notice No. KS-ND-03-032
Name and Address
of Applicant

Legal
Location

Type of
Discharge

Cornerstone Christian
Church

5531 E. 37th St. North
Wichita, KS 67220

NW1⁄4, S36, T27S,
R1E, Sedgwick
County

Nonoverflow

Kansas Permit No. C-AR94-NO14
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing permit

for operation of the existing wastewater treatment facility treating
primarily domestic wastewater. Included in this permit is a schedule
of compliance requiring the permittee to connect to the City of Wich-
ita’s collection system and properly abandon the lagoon facility. Dis-
charge of wastewater from this treatment facility to surface waters
of the State of Kansas is prohibited by this permit.

Public Notice No. KS-PT-03-020
Name and Address
of Applicant

Receiving
Facility

Type of
Discharge

Alamo Group - USA, Inc.
P.O. Box 549
Sequin, TX 78156-0549

Holton MWWTP Processed
Wastewater

Kansas Permit No. P-KS23-OO01
Facility Description: The proposed action is to reissue an existing pre-

treatment permit for this facility. This facility manufactures agricul-
tural machinery, primarily rotary mowers and tractor rear blades.
Metal parts are phosphated (conversion coated) at this location prior
to being painted. The proposed permit includes limits for total toxic
organics, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, silver, zinc, total
cyanide and pH. The monitoring of flow also will be required. The
permit limits are pursuant to state and federal pretreatment require-
ments.

Persons wishing to comment on or object to the draft
permits and/or permit applications must submit their
comments in writing to the Kansas Department of Health
and Environment if they wish to have the comments or
objections considered in the decision making process.
Comments or objections should be submitted to the at-
tention of Glenda Newquist for agricultural permits or
applications, or to the permit clerk for all other permits,
at the Kansas Department of Health and Environment,
Division of Environment, Bureau of Water, 1000 S.W.
Jackson, Suite 420, Topeka, 66612-1367.

All comments regarding the draft permit or application
notice postmarked or received on or before December 20
will be considered in the formulation of final determi-
nations regarding this public notice. Please refer to the
appropriate Kansas permit number (KS-AG-03-283/286,
KS-03-173/178, KS-ND-03-032, KS-PT-03-020) and name
of applicant/application as listed when preparing com-
ments.

If no objections are received during the public notice
period regarding any proposed permit, the Secretary of
Health and Environment will issue the final determina-
tion regarding issuance or denial of the proposed permit.
If response to this notice indicates significant public in-
terest, a public hearing may be held in conformance with
K.A.R. 28-16-61 (28-46-21 for UIC). Media coordination
for publication and/or announcement of the public notice
or public hearing is handled by the Kansas Department
of Health and Environment.

For agricultural permits and applications, a copy of the
permit application, supporting documentation and a
KDHE-developed fact sheet, if appropriate, is available
for review at the appropriate district office:

Northwest District Office, 2301 E. 13th, Hays,
67601-2651, (785) 625-5664

North Central District Office, 2501 Market Place,
Salina, 67401-7699, (785) 827-9639

Northeast District Office, 800 W. 24th, Lawrence,
66046-4417, (785) 842-4600

Southwest District Office, 302 W. McArtor Road,
Dodge City, 67801-6098, (620) 225-0596

South Central District Office, 130 S. Market, 6th Floor,
Wichita, 67202-3802, (316) 337-6020

Southeast District Office, 1500 W. 7th, Chanute, 66720,
(620) 431-2390

Application information and components of plans and
specifications for all new facilities and for expansions of
existing swine facilities may be reviewed on the Internet
at http://www.kdhe.state.ks.us/feedlots.

For all other proposed permits, the draft permit(s), in-
cluding proposed effluent limitations and special condi-
tions, fact sheets as appropriate, comments received and
other information, are on file and may be inspected at the
offices of the Kansas Department of Health and Environ-
ment, Bureau of Water.

Division of Environment offices are open from 8 a.m.
to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.
These documents are available upon request at the copy-
ing cost assessed by KDHE. Additional copies of this pub-
lic notice also may be obtained at the Division of Envi-
ronment.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030080
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State of Kansas
Board of Emergency Medical Services

Notice of Meeting

The Board of Emergency Medical Services will meet at
9 a.m. Friday, December 5, at the Pozez Education Center,
1500 S.W. 10th Ave., Topeka. Committee meetings will
begin at 10 a.m. Thursday, December 4.

Agenda items include updates on the office, committee
reports, Advisory Committee on Trauma, 2004 legislative
agenda, and FY 2004/2005 budget.

All meetings of the board are open to the public. For
more information, contact the administrator, Room 1031,
Landon State Office Building, 900 S.W. Jackson, Topeka,
66612, (785) 296-6237.

David Lake
Administrator

Doc. No. 030063

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit. Anadarko Gathering Company has ap-
plied for a Class II operating permit in accordance with
the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-540. Emissions of nitrogen
oxides (NOx) were evaluated during the permit review
process. The purpose of a Class II permit is to limit the
potential-to-emit for these pollutants to below major
source thresholds.

Anadarko Gathering Company, Houston, Texas, owns
and operates the E-1 compressor station. Anadarko Gath-
ering Company is a gas transmission company located at
Section 15, Township 34 South, Range 42 West, Morton
County, Kansas.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during the permit application review process is
available for public review for a period of 30 days from
the date of publication during normal business hours at
the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jack-
son, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed permit
can be reviewed at the KDHE South Central District Of-
fice, 130 S. Market, Suite 6050, Wichita. To obtain or re-
view the proposed permit and supporting documenta-
tion, contact Michael J. Parhomek, (785) 296-1580, at the
KDHE central office; and to review the proposed permit
only, contact Don Mies, (316) 337-6107, at the KDHE
South Central District Office. The standard departmental
cost will be assessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to Michael J. Parhomek, KDHE, Bureau
of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, To-
peka, 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulat-
ing a final permit decision, written comments must be
received by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall

be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030070

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit. Duke Energy Field Services has applied
for a Class II operating permit in accordance with the
provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-540. Emissions of nitrogen ox-
ides (NOx) and carbon monoxide (CO) were evaluated
during the permit review process. The purpose of a Class
II permit is to limit the potential-to-emit for these pollut-
ants to below major source thresholds.

Duke Energy Field Services, Denver, Colorado, owns
and operates the Davies booster compressor station.
Duke Energy Field Services is a gas transmission com-
pany located at Section 23, Township 34 South, Range 32
West, Seward County, Kansas.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during the permit application review process is
available for public review for a period of 30 days from
the date of publication during normal business hours at
the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jack-
son, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed permit
can be reviewed at the KDHE South Central District Of-
fice, 130 S. Market, Suite 6050, Wichita. To obtain or re-
view the proposed permit and supporting documenta-
tion, contact Michael J. Parhomek, (785) 296-1580, at the
KDHE central office; and to review the proposed permit
only, contact Don Mies, (316) 337-6107, at the KDHE
South Central District. The standard departmental cost
will be assessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to Michael J. Parhomek, KDHE, Bureau
of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, To-
peka, 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulat-
ing a final permit decision, written comments must be
received by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall
be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030071
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State of Kansas
Department of Transportation

Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Transportation requests
comments on the amendment of the Statewide Transpor-
tation Improvement Program (STIP) FY 04-06 by adding
the following project:

Project K-9101-04—Statewide services by the Kansas
Highway Patrol Roving Aggressive Violations Enforce-
ment Teams to reduce the incidence of DUI and other
hazardous moving violations

The amendment of the STIP requires a 30-day public
comment period. To receive more information on any of
these projects or to make comments on the STIP amend-
ment, contact the Kansas Department of Transportation,
Office of Engineering Support, 7th Floor, Docking State
Office Building, 915 S.W. Harrison, Topeka, 66612-1568,
(785) 296-7916, fax (785) 296-0723.

This information is available in alternative accessible
formats. To obtain an alternative format, contact the
KDOT Bureau of Transportation Information, (785) 296-
3585 (Voice/TTY).

The comment period regarding the STIP amendment
will conclude December 19.

Deb Miller
Secretary of Transportation

Doc. No. 030065

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment
and the Department of Air Quality of the Unified Gov-
ernment of Wyandotte County-Kansas City, Kansas, are
announcing their intent to issue an air quality construc-
tion permit to CertainTeed Corporation for its facility lo-
cated at 103 Funston Road, Kansas City, Kansas. The pro-
posed project will be comprised of the expansion of one
glass melting furnace and the installation of a new man-
ufacturing line of unbonded wool fiberglass.

While the glass production capacity of the furnace will
be increased to accommodate the new manufacturing
line, a portion of the increased capacity will be used to
increase production on an existing bonded wool fiber-
glass manufacturing line. New equipment installed will
include a new manufacturing line and associated air pol-
lution control equipment for particulate matter.

The proposed permit is to be issued in accordance with
the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-17, prevention of signifi-
cant deterioration (PSD), which adopt the federal stan-
dards, procedures and requirements of 40 CFR 52.21 by
reference. These air quality regulations apply to major
stationary emission sources located in areas designated
as ‘‘attainment’’ under the federal Clean Air Act (CAA).
Attainment areas are areas where the air quality meets or
exceeds the national ambient air quality standards
(NAAQS).

The PSD regulations require evaluation of emission re-
duction techniques to identify the best available control
technology (BACT) for each pollutant for which the emis-
sion rate exceeds the PSD significance level. The purpose
of BACT is to apply the maximum degree of reduction
achievable, taking into account energy, environmental
and economic impacts for each pollutant under review.
Evaluation of the estimated emissions for the proposed
project indicates that the emission rate of particulate mat-
ter exceeds the significance levels. CertainTeed con-
ducted the required BACT analyses. The department has
reviewed CertainTeed’s BACT analyses and concurs with
its findings that partial enclosure with negative pressure
and water sprays are BACT for the new manufacturing
line project. In addition, a dry electrostatic precipitator,
the use of pure oxygen with natural gas, good combus-
tion practices and various good operating practices con-
stitute BACT for the modified glass melting furnace.

The PSD regulations also require an evaluation of the
impacts, if any, that emissions from the proposed modi-
fications may have on the ambient air quality, visibility,
vegetation and soils. CertainTeed has conducted the re-
quired analyses in accordance with methods approved by
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The results of
the analyses conclude that there should be no significant
impacts on the ambient air quality, visibility, local vege-
tation or soils.

A public comment period has been established to allow
citizens the opportunity to express any concerns or com-
ments they may have about this permitting action. The
public comment period will end December 22 unless ex-
tended by the hearing officer. A public hearing will be
conducted at 10 a.m. December 23 by the Kansas Depart-
ment of Health and Environment at the Wyandotte
County Health Department, third floor auditorium, 619
Ann Ave., Kansas City, to receive comments on the pro-
posed issuance of an air quality construction permit. All
comments should be submitted in writing to Donna Reno,
Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310,
Topeka, 66612-1366, or may be provided in oral and/or
written form at the public hearing.

A copy of the proposed permit, the permit application
and the information relied upon during the permit ap-
plication review process is available for public review
during normal business hours, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., at the
KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson,
Suite 310, Topeka; and from 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m. at the
Wyandotte County Health Department, Department of
Air Quality, 619 Ann Ave, Room 308, Kansas City, Kan-
sas. Questions about the draft permit should be directed
to Moses Coss at (913) 573-6700 or to Dana Morris at (785)
296-1578. To review the proposed permit and supporting
documentation, or to obtain copies, contact Donna Reno,
(785) 296-5659, at the KDHE central office, or Moses Coss,
(913) 573-6700 at the Department of Air Quality.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030082
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State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit. Empire Electric has applied for a Class I
operating permit in accordance with the provisions of
K.A.R. 28-19-510 et seq. The purpose of a Class I permit
is to identify the sources and types of regulated air pol-
lutants emitted from the facility; the emission limitations,
standards and requirements applicable to each source;
and the monitoring, record keeping and reporting
requirements applicable to each source as of the effective
date of permit issuance.

Empire Electric, Joplin, Missouri, owns and operates an
electric power plant located at Route 1, Riverton.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during the permit application review process is
available for a 30-day public review during normal busi-
ness hours at the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation,
1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the
proposed permit can be reviewed at the KDHE Southeast
District Office, 1500 W. 7th, Chanute. To obtain or review
the proposed permit and supporting documentation, con-
tact William Stone, (785) 296-6427, at the KDHE central
office; and to review the proposed permit only, contact
David Stutt, (620) 431-2390, at the KDHE Southeast Dis-
trict Office. The standard departmental cost will be as-
sessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to William Stone, KDHE, Bureau of Air
and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka,
66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulating a
final permit decision, written comments must be received
by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall
be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has a 45-
day review period, which will start concurrently with the
30-day public comment period, within which to object to
the proposed permit. If the EPA has not objected in writ-
ing to the issuance of the permit within the 45-day review
period, any person may petition the administrator of the
EPA to review the permit. The 60-day public petition pe-
riod will directly follow the EPA 45-day review period.
If the EPA waives its 45-day review period, the 60-day
public petition period will start directly after the 30-day
public comment period. Interested parties may contact
KDHE to determine if the EPA’s 45-day review period
has been waived.

Any such petition shall be based only on objections to
the permit that were raised with reasonable specificity
during the public comment period provided for in this

notice, unless the petitioner demonstrates that it was im-
practicable to raise such objections within such period, or
unless the grounds for such objection arose after such pe-
riod. Contact Gary Schlicht, U.S. EPA, Region VII, Air
Permitting and Compliance Branch, 901 N. 5th St., Kansas
City, KS 66101, (913) 551-7097, to determine when the 45-
day EPA review period ends and the 60-day petition pe-
riod commences.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030067

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality
construction permit. Central Production Company, Inc.
has applied for an air quality construction permit in ac-
cordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-300. Emis-
sions of oxides of nitrogen and sulfur dioxide were eval-
uated during the permit review process.

Central Production Company, Inc., Pleasanton, owns
and operates the stationary source located at Section 10,
Township 35 South, Range 21 East, Chetopa, Labette
County, at which a boiler to supply steam floods into
injection wells is to be installed.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during review of the permit application is available
for public inspection for a period of 30 days from the date
of publication during normal business hours at the
KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson,
Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed permit can
be reviewed at the KDHE Southeast District Office, 1500
W. 7th, Chanute. To obtain or review the proposed permit
and supporting documentation, contact Rick Bolfing,
(785) 296-1576, at the KDHE central office; and to review
the proposed permit only, contact David Stutt, (620) 431-
2390, at the KDHE Southeast District Office. The standard
departmental cost will be assessed for any copies re-
quested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to Rick Bolfing, KDHE, Bureau of Air
and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka,
66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulating a
final permit decision, written comments must be received
by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall
be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030069
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State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit and amending previously-issued con-
struction approval. Westar Energy Lawrence Energy
Center has applied for a Class I operating permit in ac-
cordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-510 et seq.
The purpose of a Class I permit is to identify the sources
and types of regulated air pollutants emitted from the
facility; the emission limitations, standards and require-
ments applicable to each source; and the monitoring, rec-
ord keeping and reporting requirements applicable to
each source as of the effective date of permit issuance.
Notice also is given that certain requirements in the con-
struction approval dated October 9, 1998, are being mod-
ified by a modification of approval conditions.

Westar Energy Lawrence Energy Center, Topeka, owns
and operates a coal-fired power plant located at 1250 N.
1800 Road, Lawrence.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation, all information relied upon
during the permit application review process, and a copy
of the modification of approval conditions are available
for a 30-day public review during normal business hours
at the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W.
Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed
permit can be reviewed at the KDHE Northeast District
Office, 800 W. 24th, Lawrence. To obtain or review either
document, contact Ann L. Spitz, (785) 291-3271, at the
KDHE central office; and to review the proposed permit
only, contact Pat Simpson, (785) 842-4600, at the KDHE
Northeast District Office. The standard departmental cost
will be assessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
documents to Ann L. Spitz, KDHE, Bureau of Air and
Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, 66612-
1366. In order to be considered in formulating final doc-
ument decisions, written comments must be received by
the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed documents. The request for a public hearing
shall be in writing and set forth the basis for the request.
The written request must be submitted to Donna Reno,
Bureau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of
business December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health
and Environment to consider the request.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has a 45-
day review period, which will start concurrently with the
30-day public comment period, within which to object to
the proposed permit. If the EPA has not objected in writ-
ing to the issuance of the permit within the 45-day review
period, any person may petition the administrator of the
EPA to review the permit. The 60-day public petition pe-
riod will directly follow the EPA 45-day review period.
If the EPA waives its 45-day review period, the 60-day
public petition period will start directly after the 30-day
public comment period. Interested parties may contact

KDHE to determine if the EPA’s 45-day review period
has been waived.

Any such petition shall be based only on objections to
the permit that were raised with reasonable specificity
during the public comment period provided for in this
notice, unless the petitioner demonstrates that it was im-
practicable to raise such objections within such period, or
unless the grounds for such objection arose after such pe-
riod. Contact Gary Schlicht, U.S. EPA, Region VII, Air
Permitting and Compliance Branch, 901 N. 5th St., Kansas
City, KS 66101, (913) 551-7097, to determine when the 45-
day EPA review period ends and the 60-day petition pe-
riod commences.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030068

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit. Kansas Gas Service - Bushton Compressor
Station has applied for a Class II operating permit in ac-
cordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-540. Emis-
sions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) were evaluated during the
permit review process. The purpose of a Class II permit
is to limit the potential-to-emit for these pollutants to be-
low major source thresholds.

Kansas Gas Service - Bushton Compressor Station,
ONEOK, Inc., Tulsa, Oklahoma, owns and operates the
Bushton Compressor Station. Kansas Gas Service is a gas
transmission company located at Section 5, Township 18
South, Range 9 West, Rice County, Kansas.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during the permit application review process is
available for public review for a period of 30 days from
the date of publication during normal business hours at
the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jack-
son, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed permit
can be reviewed at the KDHE North Central District Of-
fice, 2501 Market Place, Salina. To obtain or review the
proposed permit and supporting documentation, contact
Michael J. Parhomek, (785) 296-1580, at the KDHE central
office; and to review the proposed permit only, contact
Craig Forsburg, (785) 827-9639, at the KDHE North Cen-
tral District Office. The standard departmental cost will
be assessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to Michael J. Parhomek, KDHE, Bureau
of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, To-
peka, 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulat-
ing a final permit decision, written comments must be
received by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall
be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
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written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030072

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit. ONEOK Inc. - Stevens 7-02 Compressor
Station has applied for a Class II operating permit in ac-
cordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-540. Emis-
sions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) were evaluated during the
permit review process. The purpose of a Class II permit
is to limit the potential-to-emit for these pollutants to be-
low major source thresholds.

ONEOK Inc. - Stevens 7-02 Compressor Station,
ONEOK Field Services, Tulsa, Oklahoma, owns and op-
erates the Stevens 7-02 Compressor Station. ONEOK
Field Services is a gas transmission company located at
Section 30, Township 32 South, Range 37 West, Stevens
County, Kansas.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all
supporting documentation and all information relied
upon during the permit application review process is
available for public review for a period of 30 days from
the date of publication during normal business hours at
the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jack-
son, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of the proposed permit
can be reviewed at the KDHE South Central District Of-
fice, 130 S. Market, Suite 6050, Wichita. To obtain or re-
view the proposed permit and supporting documenta-
tion, contact Michael J. Parhomek, (785) 296-1580, at the
KDHE central office; and to review the proposed permit
only, contact Don Mies, (316) 337-6107, at the KDHE
South Central District. The standard departmental cost
will be assessed for any copies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
proposed permit to Michael J. Parhomek, KDHE, Bureau
of Air and Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, To-
peka, 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulat-
ing a final permit decision, written comments must be
received by the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall
be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The
written request must be submitted to Donna Reno, Bu-
reau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of busi-
ness December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health and
Environment to consider the request.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030073

State of Kansas
Department of Health

and Environment
Request for Comments

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment is
soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality op-
erating permit and a proposed air quality construction
permit. Custom Cupboards, Inc. has applied for a Class I
operating permit in accordance with the provisions of
K.A.R. 28-19-510 et seq. The purpose of a Class I permit
is to identify the sources and types of regulated air pol-
lutants emitted from the facility; the emission limitations,
standards and requirements applicable to each source;
and the monitoring, record keeping and reporting
requirements applicable to each source as of the effective
date of permit issuance. Notice also is given that Custom
Cupboards, Inc. has applied for an air quality construc-
tion permit in accordance with the provisions of K.A.R.
28-19-300 to install a new spray finishing line. Emissions
of volatile organic compounds were evaluated during the
construction permit review process.

Custom Cupboards, Inc., Wichita, owns and operates
a wood cabinet manufacturing facility located at 3738
Norman, Wichita.

A copy of the proposed Class I permit, permit appli-
cation, all supporting documentation, all information re-
lied upon during the Class I permit application review
process, and a copy of the proposed construction permit
are available for a 30-day public review during normal
business hours at the KDHE, Bureau of Air and Radia-
tion, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka; and a copy of
the proposed permits can be reviewed at the Wichita De-
partment of Environmental Health. To obtain or review
these documents, contact John C. Irwin, (785) 296-2501, at
the KDHE central office; or Randy Owen, (316) 268-8448,
at the Wichita Department of Environmental Health. The
standard departmental cost will be assessed for any cop-
ies requested.

Direct written comments or questions regarding the
documents to John C. Irwin, KDHE, Bureau of Air and
Radiation, 1000 S.W. Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, 66612-
1366. In order to be considered in formulating final doc-
ument decisions, written comments must be received by
the close of business December 22.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the
proposed documents. The request for a public hearing
shall be in writing and set forth the basis for the request.
The written request must be submitted to Donna Reno,
Bureau of Air and Radiation, not later than the close of
business December 22 in order for the Secretary of Health
and Environment to consider the request.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has a 45-
day review period, which will start concurrently with the
30-day public comment period, within which to object to
the proposed permit. If the EPA has not objected in writ-
ing to the issuance of the permit within the 45-day review
period, any person may petition the administrator of the
EPA to review the permit. The 60-day public petition pe-
riod will directly follow the EPA 45-day review period.

(continued)
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If the EPA waives its 45-day review period, the 60-day
public petition period will start directly after the 30-day
public comment period. Interested parties may contact
KDHE to determine if the EPA’s 45-day review period
has been waived.

Any such petition shall be based only on objections to
the permit that were raised with reasonable specificity
during the public comment period provided for in this
notice, unless the petitioner demonstrates that it was im-
practicable to raise such objections within such period, or
unless the grounds for such objection arose after such pe-
riod. Contact Gary Schlicht, U.S. EPA, Region VII, Air
Permitting and Compliance Branch, 901 N. 5th St., Kansas
City, KS 66101, (913) 551-7097, to determine when the 45-
day EPA review period ends and the 60-day petition pe-
riod commences.

Roderick L. Bremby
Secretary of Health

and Environment
Doc. No. 030076

(Published in the Kansas Register November 20, 2003.)

Summary Notice of Bond Sale
City of Louisburg, Kansas

$1,200,000
General Obligation Improvement Bonds

Series 2003-B

(General obligation improvement bonds payable
from unlimited ad valorem taxes)

Details of the Sale
Subject to the terms and conditions of the complete of-

ficial notice of bond sale dated November 17, 2003, of the
City of Louisburg, Kansas, bids for purchase of the city’s
General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2003-B,
will be received at the office of the city clerk at City Hall,
5 S. Peoria, Louisburg, KS 66053, in the manner described
in the official notice of bond sale, until 2 p.m. Monday,
December 1, 2003. No bid of less than the entire par value
of the bonds plus accrued interest to the date of delivery
will be considered. Each bid shall be accompanied by a
good faith deposit in the form of a certified or cashier’s
check drawn on a bank located in the United States and
made payable to the city, or a financial surety bond (as
described in the official notice of bond sale), in an amount
equal to 2 percent of the principal amount of the bonds.
Details of Bonds

The bonds are dated December 15, 2003, and will be
issued as fully registered bonds in the denomination of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Interest on the
bonds is payable semiannually on March 1 and Septem-
ber 1 of each year, beginning March 1, 2005. Principal of
the bonds becomes due on September 1 in the years and
amounts shown below:

Principal
Amount

Maturity
Date

$ 40,000 2005
70,000 2006
70,000 2007
70,000 2008

75,000 2009
75,000 2010
75,000 2011
80,000 2012
80,000 2013
85,000 2014
90,000 2015
90,000 2016
95,000 2017

100,000 2018
105,000 2019

Book-Entry Bonds
The bonds will be issued and registered under a book-

entry-only system administered by the Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (DTC).
Payment of Principal and Interest

The Kansas State Treasurer will serve as the bond reg-
istrar and paying agent for the bonds.
Delivery of the Bonds

The city will prepare the bonds and will deliver the
properly prepared, executed and registered bonds to the
successful bidder at the offices of DTC, New York, New
York, all at the city’s expense.
Legal Opinion

The bonds are sold subject to the legal opinion of
Triplett, Woolf & Garretson, LLC, Wichita, Kansas, bond
counsel, whose fees will be paid by the city. Bond coun-
sel’s approving legal opinion as to the validity of the
bonds will be delivered to the successful bidder with de-
livery of the bonds.
Financial Matters

The city’s current equalized assessed tangible valuation
for purposes of calculating statutory debt limitations is
$28,664,906. As of December 15, 2003, the city’s total out-
standing general obligation debt, including the bonds, is
$9,658,436.
Additional Information

For additional information regarding the city, the
bonds and the public sale, interested parties should con-
tact the city clerk at the address shown below or the city’s
financial advisor, David Arteberry, George K. Baum &
Company, 435 Nichols Road, Kansas City, MO 64112,
(816) 283-5137.

City of Louisburg, Kansas
By Sue Seuferling

City Clerk
City Hall, 5 S. Peoria
Louisburg, KS 66053

(913) 837-5371
Fax (913) 837-5374

Doc. No. 030077
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Summary Notice of Bond Sale
City of Holcomb, Kansas

$800,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series B, 2003

(General obligation bonds payable from
unlimited ad valorem taxes)

Bids
Subject to the notice of bond sale dated November 12,

2003, written bids will be received by the clerk of the City
of Holcomb, Kansas (the issuer), on behalf of the govern-
ing body at 200 N. Lynch St., P.O. Box 69, Holcomb, KS
67851, until 5 p.m. December 2, 2003, for the purchase of
$800,000 principal amount of General Obligation Bonds,
Series B, 2003. No bid of less than 100 percent of the prin-
cipal amount of the bonds and accrued interest thereon
to the date of delivery will be considered.
Bond Details

The bonds will consist of fully registered bonds in the
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
The bonds will be dated December 1, 2003, and will be-
come due on October 1 in the years as follows:

Year
Principal
Amount

2005 $10,000
2006 10,000
2007 10,000
2008 10,000
2009 10,000
2010 10,000
2011 15,000
2012 15,000
2013 15,000
2014 55,000
2015 60,000
2016 60,000
2017 65,000
2018 65,000
2019 70,000
2020 75,000
2021 80,000
2022 80,000
2023 85,000

The bonds will bear interest from the date thereof at
rates to be determined when the bonds are sold as here-
inafter provided, which interest will be payable semian-
nually on April 1 and October 1 in each year, beginning
April 1, 2004.
Paying Agent and Bond Registrar

Kansas State Treasurer, Topeka, Kansas.
Good Faith Deposit

Each bid shall be accompanied by a good faith deposit
in the form of a cashier’s or certified check drawn on a
bank located in the United States or a qualified financial
surety bond in the amount of $16,000 (2 percent of the
principal amount of the bonds).

Delivery
The issuer will pay for printing the bonds and will de-

liver the same properly prepared, executed and regis-
tered without cost to the successful bidder on or about
December 16, 2003, to DTC for the account of the suc-
cessful bidder or at such bank or trust company in the
contiguous United States as may be specified by the suc-
cessful bidder, or elsewhere at the expense of the suc-
cessful bidder.

Assessed Valuation and Indebtedness
The equalized assessed tangible valuation for compu-

tation of bonded debt limitations for the year 2002 is
$8,226,549. The total general obligation indebtedness of
the issuer as of the date of delivery of the bonds, includ-
ing the bonds being sold but excluding temporary notes
to be retired in conjunction therewith, is $3,590,000.

Approval of Bonds
The bonds will be sold subject to the legal opinion of

Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas, bond counsel,
whose approving legal opinion as to the validity of the
bonds will be furnished and paid for by the issuer,
printed on the bonds and delivered to the successful bid-
der when the bonds are delivered.

Additional Information
Additional information regarding the bonds may be

obtained from the clerk, (620) 277-2265, fax (620) 277-
2603, e-mail: holcombwater@wbsnet.org; or from the fi-
nancial advisor, Cooper Malone McClain, Inc., P.O. Box
781684, Wichita, KS 67278, Attention: David Malone,
(316) 685-5777, fax (316) 685-1751, e-mail: dmalone@
cmmci.com.

Dated November 12, 2003.
City of Holcomb, Kansas

Doc. No. 030079

State of Kansas
Real Estate Appraisal Board

Permanent Administrative
Regulations

Article 5.—PROVISIONAL CLASSIFICATION

117-5-2. Provisional classification; supervised ex-
perience requirements. (a) Each provisional licensed ap-
praiser’s work in developing, preparing, or communicat-
ing an appraisal report shall be directly supervised by a
supervising appraiser, who shall be either a state licensed
or certified appraiser in good standing.

(b) For the purpose of this regulation, ‘‘good standing’’
shall mean that all of the following conditions are met:

(1) The certified or licensed appraiser is not currently
subject to a board-approved consent agreement and order
that prohibits supervision.

(2) The certified or licensed appraiser is not subject to
a summary order or final order that includes terms that
prohibit supervision.

(3) The appraiser’s certificate or license is not sus-
pended or revoked.

(continued)
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(c) Each appraisal report shall be signed by the pro-
visional licensed appraiser or by the preparer of the re-
port who supervised the provisional licensed appraiser,
certifying that the report is in compliance with the uni-
form standards of professional appraisal practice of the
appraisal foundation in effect at the time of the appraisal.

(d) If the provisional appraiser does not sign the ap-
praisal report, the preparer shall describe, in the certifi-
cation section or in the dated and signed addendum to
the certification page of the appraisal report, the extent
to which the provisional licensed appraiser provided as-
sistance in developing, preparing, or communicating the
appraisal through generally accepted appraisal methods
and techniques.

(e) Each supervising appraiser shall be responsible for
the supervision of the provisional appraiser by perform-
ing the following:

(1) Reviewing, before the signing of the certification
section or addendum, each appraisal report that the pro-
visional licensed appraiser prepared or provided assis-
tance in developing, preparing, or communicating; and

(2) personally inspecting each appraised property with
the provisional licensed appraiser until the supervising
appraiser determines that the provisional licensed ap-
praiser is competent, in accordance with the competency
provision of the uniform standards of professional ap-
praisal practice (USPAP), as specified in K.A.R. 117-8-1,
for the property type.

(f) Each provisional licensed appraiser shall be per-
mitted to have more than one supervising appraiser.

(g) Each provisional licensed appraiser shall maintain
an appraisal log. This log shall, at a minimum, include
the following for each appraisal report:

(1) The type of property;
(2) the client’s name and address;
(3) the address of the appraised property;
(4) a description of work performed;
(5) the number of work hours; and
(6) the state license or certification number and the sig-

nature of the supervising appraiser, which shall serve as
verification of the accuracy of the information specified
in this subsection.

(h) Each provisional licensee shall maintain a log of
appraisals completed with each separate supervising ap-
praiser.

(i) After one year as a provisional licensed appraiser,
the individual shall be required to meet the continuing
education requirements for licensed or certified apprais-
ers, as set forth in K.A.R. 117-6-1. In order to be licensed
as a real property appraiser, certified as a general real
property appraiser, or certified as a residential real prop-
erty appraiser, the provisional licensed appraiser shall
complete the experience requirements listed in K.A.R.
117-2-2, K.A.R. 117-3-2, or K.A.R. 117-4-2, within five
years of being issued the provisional license. (Authorized
by and implementing K.S.A. 58-4109; effective April 24,
1998; amended Dec. 5, 2003.)

Sally L. Pritchett
Executive Director

Doc. No. 030066

State of Kansas
Kansas Insurance Department

Permanent Administrative
Regulations

Article 3.—FIRE AND CASUALTY INSURANCE

40-3-48. Insurance companies; managing general
agents; definitions; requirements; penalties. (a) The
terms ‘‘managing general agent’’ and ‘‘MGA,’’ as defined
in K.S.A. 40-2,130(d) and amendments thereto, shall in-
clude any person who, in addition to the criteria set forth
in that statute, adjusts or pays any claim in excess of
$10,000 per claim or negotiates reinsurance on behalf of
the insurer.

(b) The term ‘‘total annual written premium’’ shall in-
clude all direct premiums written by a managing general
agent regardless of where the risks are located.

(c)(1) Each managing general agent shall acquire and
maintain a fidelity bond for the protection of the insurer
contracting with the managing general agent. The bond
shall be in the amount of at least $100,000 or 10 percent
of the managing general agent’s total annual written pre-
mium nationwide that was produced by the MGA for the
insurer in the prior calendar year. The bond shall not ex-
ceed $500,000. The bond amount shall be adjusted ac-
cordingly on or before April 1 of each year.

(2) Coverage shall not be written by the insurer or an
affiliate of the insurer contracting with the managing gen-
eral agent. The bond shall be executed by a fidelity in-
surer admitted to do business in Kansas, or an insurer
appearing on the list maintained by the commissioner
pursuant to K.S.A. 40-246e and amendments thereto, on
a form supplied by the department.

(3) A copy of the executed bond shall be filed with the
department.

(d)(1) Each managing general agent shall acquire and
maintain an errors and omissions insurance policy. The
policy coverage limits shall be at a minimum of $100,000
or 10 percent of the managing general agent’s total annual
written premium nationwide that was produced by the
MGA for the insurer in the prior calendar year. The policy
coverage limits shall not exceed $500,000. The policy cov-
erage limits shall be adjusted accordingly on or before
April 1 of each year.

(2) The errors and omissions policy shall be issued by
an insurer admitted to do business in Kansas or an in-
surer appearing on the list maintained by the commis-
sioner pursuant to K.S.A. 40-246e and amendments
thereto. Coverage shall not be written by the insurer or
an affiiliate of the insurer contracting with the managing
general agent.

(3) Proof of insurance shall be filed with the depart-
ment.

(e) Each contract entered into between a managing
general agent and a domestic insurer shall be retained by
the insurer.

(f) Each managing general agent shall keep the usual
and customary records pertaining to transactions taking
place under the managing general agent agreements at
the managing general agent’s place of business. All
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books, bank accounts, and records shall be kept available
and open to the inspection of the commissioner or the
commissioner’s representatives at any time during busi-
ness hours. These records shall be retained by the man-
aging general agent until the insurer and the business to
which the records pertain has been the subject of an ex-
amination pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 40-222 and
amendments thereto.

(g) If the contract between an insurer and a managing
general agent is terminated for any reason, the managing
general agent shall, upon request of the insurer, deliver
all records to the insurer within 90 days of the request.

(h) Each managing general agent shall send the insurer
a claim file when the managing general agent first knows
that the claim might exceed a limit set by the insurer, or
one-quarter of one percent of the policyholder surplus as
reported in the last annual statement of the insurer,
whichever is less.

(i) Each managing general agent shall send the insurer
a claim file when the managing general agent first knows
that the claim file is closed by payment of an amount set
by the insurer, or an amount in excess of one-quarter of
one percent of the policyholder surplus as reported in the
last annual statement of the insurer, whichever is less.

(j) Each insurer licensed to write business in the state
of Kansas shall file with the department, on or before
March 1 of each year, a current list of names and ad-
dresses of all managing general agents with which the
insurer has a contract and the name of an officer of the
insurer responsible for the contract. The insurer shall pro-
vide written notification of changes to the list on a con-
tinuing basis.

(k) An independent audit by a certified public account-
ant shall be conducted annually upon managing general
agents currently under contract, and shall be contracted
for by the insurer. The independent audit shall include
the following:

(1) A report of an independent certified public ac-
countant;

(2) a balance sheet;
(3) a statement of income;
(4) a statement of cash flows;
(5) a statement of income and retained earnings;
(6) notes to financial statements required by generally

accepted accounting principles; and
(7) a listing of all exceptions and internal control weak-

nesses noted in the course of the audit.
(l) Each insurer shall retain a current independent au-

dit report by a certified public accountant of each man-
aging general agent with which the insurer has done busi-
ness.

(m) The authority to examine a managing general
agent shall be retained by the commissioner, notwith-
standing termination of the managing general agent’s
contractual authority. The insurer employing the man-
aging general agent shall reimburse the department for
the expense of the examination according to the provi-
sions of K.S.A. 40-223 and amendments thereto. (Author-
ized by K.S.A. 40-103 and K.S.A. 40-2,136; implementing
K.S.A. 40-2,130(d)(1), 40-2,131, 40-2,132, 40-2,133, and 40-
2,134; effective Dec. 16, 1991; amended Dec. 5, 2003.)

Sandy Praeger
Kansas Insurance Commissioner

Doc. No. 030081

State of Kansas
Board of Tax Appeals
Permanent Administrative

Regulations

Article 2.—PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE BOARD

94-2-4. Filing procedure and time limits. (a)(1)
Each party filing any action with the board shall file the
application or appeal and shall pay any applicable fees
required by K.A.R. 94-2-21. Each document filed shall be
deemed to have been filed when actually received and
file-stamped by the secretary or the secretary’s designee,
and the action shall commence on that date if the docu-
ment is in the form prescribed by these regulations or by
statute.

(2) Each application and appeal shall be accompanied
or followed by any applicable filing fees, as specified in
K.A.R. 94-2-21.

(b) In computing any period of time prescribed by stat-
ute or these regulations for any appeal or application, the
computation shall be made pursuant to K.S.A. 60-206,
and amendments thereto, unless the method of compu-
tation is otherwise specified in these regulations or by
statute. A legal holiday shall be each day designated in
K.A.R. 1-9-2.

(c) When by these regulations or by notice given by the
board, an act is required to be completed within a speci-
fied time, the time for completing the act may be extended
by the board, if a motion is filed by a party before the
expiration of the specified time. A motion for extension
of time filed after the time limit has expired may be
granted by the board only if the failure to act within the
time limit was the result of excusable neglect.

(d) Any individual or entity may file documents at the
board office between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.
on any business day. Each document, whether mailed,
hand-delivered, or sent via facsimile machine or elec-
tronic mail, shall be received by 5:00 p.m. to be file-
stamped and considered filed on that date. The time of
receipt shall be that time shown by the board’s time clock,
the time printed by the board’s facsimile machine on the
final page of the facsimile-received document, or the time
shown as received by the board’s electronic mail system.
(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-2437; effec-
tive May 1, 1981; amended May 1, 1987; amended May
1, 1988; amended Aug. 15, 1997; amended May 24, 2002;
amended, T-94-8-28-03, Aug. 28, 2003; amended Dec. 5,
2003.)

94-2-19. Facsimile filing. (a)(1) The board’s facsim-
ile machine shall be available on a 24-hour basis, seven
days per week. However, this provision shall not prevent
the board from sending documents by fax or providing
for normal repairs and maintenance of the facsimile ma-
chine.

(2) Each complete facsimile filing received in the
board’s office at or before 5:00 p.m. on a regular workday
shall be deemed filed on that day. Each filing received
after 5:00 p.m. shall be filed as if received on the next
regular board workday. The time of receipt shall be the

(continued)
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time printed by the board’s facsimile machine on the final
page of the facsimile-received document. Each filing re-
ceived on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday shall be
filed as if received on the next regular board workday.

(3) Each application and appeal filed by facsimile shall
be followed by any applicable filing fees as specified in
K.A.R. 94-2-21.

(b) Each pleading or other paper filed by facsimile
transmission shall have the same effect as that of any doc-
ument filed with the board by any other means. A facsim-
ile signature shall have the same effect as that of an orig-
inal signature. Only one copy of the pleading or other
paper shall be transmitted.

(c) Each certificate of service shall state the date of serv-
ice and the facsimile telephone numbers of both the
sender and the receiver.

(d) The sender may petition the board for an order fil-
ing the document nunc pro tunc if a facsimile filing is not
filed with the board because of either of the following:

(1) An error in the transmission of the document, the
occurrence of which was unknown to the sender; or

(2) a failure to process the facsimile filing when re-
ceived by the board.

The motion shall be accompanied by the transmission
record, a copy of the document transmitted, and an affi-
davit of transmission by fax as set forth in Kansas su-
preme court rule 119 relating to district courts, appendix
B. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-2437; ef-
fective May 24, 2002; amended, T-94-8-28-03, Aug. 28,
2003; amended Dec. 5, 2003.)

94-2-20. Electronic mail filing. (a)(1) Electronic
mail shall be sent to the board’s central electronic mail
address in order to be considered filed with the board.
The format for documents shall be as specified in K.A.R.
94-2-3. Electronic mail sent to any individual board mem-
ber’s or to any board staff’s personal electronic mail ad-
dress shall not be considered to be filed with the board.

(2) Each application and appeal filed by electronic mail
shall be followed by any applicable filing fees as specified
in K.A.R. 94-2-21.

(b) Electronic mail shall have a return electronic mail
address along with the name of the individual sending
the electronic mail and a telephone number by which that
individual can be contacted.

(c) Each pleading or other document filed by electronic
mail shall have the same effect as that of any document
filed with the board by any other means. Only one copy
of the pleading or document shall be transmitted. An elec-
tronic signature or the symbol ‘‘/s/’’ on the signature line
in place of a signature shall have the same effect as that
of an original signature.

(d) Electronic mail received in the board’s office at the
central electronic mail address on or before 5:00 p.m. shall
be deemed filed on that day. Electronic mail received af-
ter 5:00 p.m. shall be deemed to be filed as if received on
the next regular workday of the board. The time of receipt
shall be the time shown by the board’s electronic mail
system. Electronic mail received on a Saturday, Sunday,
or legal holiday shall be deemed to be filed as if received
on the next regular workday of the board.

(e) Electronic mail shall be printed by the board and a
copy placed in the appropriate file or files. A copy of any

associated transmission acknowledgment shall also be
placed in the file or files.

(f) If an electronic mail message indicates that there is
an attachment but the attachment is not sent or the at-
tachment cannot be opened, the party that sent the mes-
sage shall be apprised of this fact by the board. If the
attachment is then sent and the board is able to open the
attachment, the file date and time shall be the date and
time the opened attachment was actually received by the
board. Each attachment shall be sent in a format specified
by the board.

(g) The sender may petition the board for an order fil-
ing the document nunc pro tunc if an electronic mail doc-
ument is not filed with the board because of either of the
following:

(1) An error in the transmission of the document, the
occurrence of which was unknown to the sender; or

(2) a failure to process the electronic mail document
when received by the board.

The motion shall be accompanied by the transmission
record, a copy of the document transmitted, and an affi-
davit of transmission by electronic mail in the form as set
forth in Kansas supreme court rule 119, appendix B re-
lating to facsimile filings.

(h) Each party who files a document by electronic mail
shall retain a copy of that document in the party’s pos-
session or control during the pendency of the action and
shall produce the document upon request pursuant to
K.S.A. 60-234, and amendments thereto, by the board or
any party to the action. Failure to produce the document
may result in the document being stricken from the rec-
ord and may result in sanctions pursuant to K.S.A. 60-
211, and amendments thereto.

(i) Each party utilizing electronic mail shall comply
with K.S.A. 77-525, and amendments thereto, regarding
ex parte communications and with K.A.R. 94-2-5, which
requires that a copy of any correspondence with the
board be exchanged with all parties. A certificate of serv-
ice shall be included on pleadings. For letters, there shall
be an indication on the letter that a copy was sent to all
parties. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-
2437; effective May 24, 2002; amended, T-94-8-28-03, Aug.
28, 2003; amended Dec. 5, 2003.)

94-2-21. Filing fees. (a) The following fees shall be
in effect for applications and appeals filed with the reg-
ular division of the board:

(1) Economic development exemption applications filed
pursuant to Kansas constitution article 11, § 13 .... $250.00

(2) Industrial revenue bond exemption applications
filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-201a Second, and amendments
thereto .............................................................$250.00

(3) Tax exemption applications not included in para-
graphs (a)(1), (2), and (6) of this regulation, except for
applications filed by school districts pursuant to K.S.A.
79-201 First and Second, and amendments thereto, and ap-
plications filed by governmental entities pursuant to
K.S.A. 79-201a, and amendments thereto ............ $50.00

(4) Tax grievance applications requesting abatement of
penalties filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-332a, 79-1422, or 79-
1427a, and amendments thereto ......................... $15.00

(5)(A) Equalization appeals filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-
1609, and amendments thereto, and payment-under-pro-
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test appeals filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-2005, and amend-
ments thereto, involving real estate, excluding appeals of
the valuation or classification of single-family residential
properties, farmsteads, and agricultural land and exclud-
ing appeals by not-for-profit organizations specified in
paragraph (a)(6) of this regulation, for the following val-
uations:

$250,000 or less .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $50.00 per parcel
more than $250,000 but not

more than $1,000,000... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $75.00 per parcel
more than $1,000,000... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $125.00 per parcel

(B) For purposes of this regulation, ‘‘valuation’’ shall
mean the valuation shown on the county notice of valu-
ation or the valuation at the time of the filing of the appeal
with the regular division of the board if the valuation has
been reduced by the county appraiser at the informal
hearing, by the hearing officer panel, or by the small
claims division. The filing fee on multiple, contiguous
parcels that comprise one economic unit and are owned
by the same person or entity shall require one filing fee
for the highest-valued parcel, as specified in paragraph
(a)(5)(A) of this regulation, and $15.00 for each additional
parcel.

(6) Applications and appeals filed by not-for-profit or-
ganizations if the valuation of the property at issue is less
than $100,000 ..................................................... $10.00

(7) Equalization appeals filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-
1609, and amendments thereto, and payment-under-pro-
test appeals filed pursuant to K.S.A. 79-2005, and amend-
ments thereto, involving the assessment of personal
property ............................................................ $50.00

(8) Appeals of mortgage registration fees filed pursuant
to K.S.A. 79-3107c, and amendments thereto ....... $15.00

(9) Appeals from final decisions of the director, or the
director’s designee, of the Kansas department of revenue,
division of property valuation, for the following amounts
in controversy:

$500 or less .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25.00
more than $500 but not more than $1,000 ... . . . . . . . . . . . . $50.00
more than $1,000 but not more than $5,000 ... . . . . . . . . .$100.00

more than $5,000 but not more than $10,000 ... . . . . . . .$175.00
more than $10,000 ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$250.00

(10) Appeals from final decisions of the secretary, or
the secretary’s designee, of the Kansas department of rev-
enue, division of taxation, excluding homestead property
tax refund appeals under K.S.A. 79-4501 et seq., and
amendments thereto, for the following amounts in con-
troversy:

$500 or less .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25.00
more than $500 but not more than $1,000 ... . . . . . . . . . . . . $50.00
more than $1,000 but not more than $5,000 ... . . . . . . . . .$100.00
more than $5,000 but not more than $10,000 ... . . . . . . .$175.00
more than $10,000 ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$250.00

(b) Except as specified in this subsection, each appli-
cation and appeal listed in subsection (a) shall be accom-
panied by the applicable filing fee in the form of a check
or money order made payable to the board of tax appeals
or shall be paid by credit card. If the fee does not accom-
pany the filed application or appeal, the fee shall be re-
ceived by the board within seven business days of the
receipt of the application or appeal. If the fee is not re-
ceived within this time period, the application or appeal
shall be considered not appropriately filed with the
board, and the application or appeal shall be dismissed.

(c)(1) If an applicant or taxpayer by reason of poverty
is unable to pay a filing fee and files an affidavit that
states this reason and is accompanied by supporting doc-
umentation, the filing fee may be waived by the board.

(2) If an applicant or taxpayer asserts that multiple ap-
plications or appeals should be filed as one application
or appeal, upon written request and demonstration that
the matters should be filed as one application or appeal,
all fees or a portion of the fees may be waived by the
board. If the fees have already been paid, all fees paid or
a portion of the fees paid may be refunded by the board.
(Authorized by and implementing L. 2003, ch. 147, sec.
67; effective, T-94-8-28-03, Aug. 28, 2003; effective Dec. 5,
2003.)

Tony R. Folsom
Executive Director
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26-8-3 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-5 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-5 Amended V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-6 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-6 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-7 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-7 Amended V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-8 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-8 Amended V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-9 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-9 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-12 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-12 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-13 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-13 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-14 Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-14 Revoked V. 21, p. 1748
26-8-15 New (T) V. 21, p. 1173
26-8-15 New V. 21, p. 1748
26-11-1 New V. 21, p. 1405
26-11-2 New V. 21, p. 1405
26-11-3 New V. 21, p. 1405

AGENCY 28: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND ENVIRONMENT

Reg. No. Action Register

28-1-18 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1405
28-1-18 Amended V. 21, p. 1920
28-4-269 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 497
28-4-269 Amended V. 21, p. 1167
28-4-331 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 498
28-4-331 Amended V. 21, p. 1168
28-4-351 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 500
28-4-351 Amended V. 21, p. 1170

28-4-576
through
28-4-596 New (T) V. 21, p. 597-616
28-4-576
through
28-4-596 New V. 21, p. 2138-2156
28-14-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1791
28-14-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1791
28-16-28b
through
28-16-28e Amended V. 21, p. 2096-2012
28-16-28b Amended V. 22, p. 1760
28-16-28e Amended V. 22, p. 1763
28-17-6 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1225
28-17-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1711
28-19-17 Amended V. 21, p. 1892
28-19-17a
through
28-19-17q Revoked V. 21, p. 1892
28-19-75 Revoked V. 21, p. 1325
28-19-350 New V. 21, p. 1892
28-19-564 Amended V. 21, p. 1581
28-19-714 New V. 21, p. 1325
28-29-3 Amended V. 22, p. 798
28-29-18 Revoked V. 21, p. 310
28-29-20 Amended V. 22, p. 801
28-29-29 Amended V. 21, p. 310
28-29-101 Revoked V. 22, p. 802
28-29-109 Amended V. 22, p. 802
28-29-2201 New V. 21, p. 310
28-31-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1511
28-31-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1512
28-31-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1512
28-31-4 Amended V. 21, p. 1512
28-31-6 Amended V. 21, p. 1517
28-31-8 Amended V. 21, p. 1518
28-31-8b Amended V. 21, p. 1519
28-31-9 Amended V. 21, p. 1519
28-31-10 Amended V. 21, p. 1519
28-31-10a Amended V. 21, p. 1520
28-31-11 Revoked V. 21, p. 1520
28-31-14 Amended V. 21, p. 1520
28-31-15 Amended V. 21, p. 1520
28-31-16 Amended V. 21, p. 1520
28-36-30 Amended V. 22, p. 1771
28-38-18
through
28-38-23 Amended V. 22, p. 7-9
28-38-18 Amended V. 22, p. 1575
28-38-19 Amended V. 22, p. 1575
28-38-28 Amended V. 22, p. 10
28-38-29 Amended V. 22, p. 10
28-38-30 Amended V. 22, p. 11
28-45-2 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 531
28-45-2 Revoked V. 22, p. 1304
28-45-2a New (T) V. 22, p. 531
28-45-2a New V. 22, p. 1304
28-45-3 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 532
28-45-3 Revoked V. 22, p. 1305
28-45-3a New (T) V. 22, p. 532
28-45-3a New V. 22, p. 1305
28-45-4 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 533
28-45-4 Revoked V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-4a New (T) V. 22, p. 533
28-45-4a New V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-5 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 533
28-45-5 Revoked V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-5a New (T) V. 22, p. 533
28-45-5a New V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-6 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 534
28-45-6 Revoked V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-6a New (T) V. 22, p. 534
28-45-6a New V. 22, p. 1306
28-45-7 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 535
28-45-7 Revoked V. 22, p. 1308
28-45-7a New (T) V. 22, p. 535
28-45-7a New V. 22, p. 1308
28-45-8 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-8 Revoked V. 22, p. 1309
28-45-8a New (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-8a New V. 22, p. 1309
28-45-9 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-9 Revoked V. 22, p. 1309
28-45-9a New (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-9a New V. 22, p. 1309

28-45-10 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-10 Revoked V. 22, p. 1309
28-45-10a New (T) V. 22, p. 536
28-45-10a New V. 22, p. 1309
28-45-11 Revoked (T) V. 22, p. 537
28-45-11 Revoked V. 22, p. 1310
28-45-11a New (T) V. 22, p. 537
28-45-11a New V. 22, p. 1310
28-45-12
through
28-45-30 New (T) V. 22, p. 537-548
28-45-12
through
28-45-30 New V. 22, p. 1310-1321
28-45a-1
through
28-45a-19 New (T) V. 22, p. 548-557
28-45a-1
through
28-45a-19 New V. 22, p. 1321-1331
28-55-3 Amended V. 21, p. 311
28-55-5 Amended V. 21, p. 311
28-72-1
through
28-72-4 Amended V. 21, p. 1944-1948
28-72-4a Amended V. 21, p. 1952
28-72-4b Amended V. 21, p. 1954
28-72-4c Amended V. 21, p. 1955
28-72-5
through
28-72-18 Amended V. 21, p. 1957-1971
28-72-18e Amended V. 21, p. 1973
28-72-19 Amended V. 21, p. 1974
28-72-21 Amended V. 21, p. 1974

AGENCY 30: SOCIAL AND
REHABILITATION SERVICES

Reg. No. Action Register

30-4-39 Amended V. 22, p. 1533
30-4-55 Amended V. 22, p. 1533
30-4-90 Amended V. 21, p. 1005
30-4-96 Revoked V. 22, p. 249
30-4-110 Amended V. 22, p. 1534
30-5-64 Amended V. 22, p. 1890
30-5-81u Amended (T) V. 22, p. 83
30-5-81u Amended V. 22, p. 432
30-5-89 Amended V. 22, p. 1355
30-5-89a Amended V. 22, p. 1355
30-5-94 Amended V. 21, p. 2049
30-5-101 Revoked V. 21, p. 1007
30-5-101a Revoked V. 21, p. 2049
30-5-102 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 83
30-5-102 Amended V. 22, p. 432
30-5-105 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 83
30-5-105 Amended V. 22, p. 433
30-5-107 Amended V. 22, p. 1043
30-5-107a Amended V. 22, p. 1044
30-5-108a Amended V. 21, p. 2049
30-5-300 Amended V. 21, p. 1007
30-5-308 Amended V. 21, p. 2049
30-6-65 Amended V. 22, p. 1044
30-6-86 Amended V. 21, p. 2049
30-6-88 New V. 21, p. 1010
30-6-94 Amended V. 21, p. 506
30-6-103 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 84
30-6-103 Amended V. 22, p. 433
30-6-106 Amended V. 22, p. 249
30-6-107 Amended V. 21, p. 1011
30-6-108 Amended V. 22, p. 1045
30-6-109 Amended V. 22, p. 1045
30-6-112 Amended V. 21, p. 1013
30-10-1a Amended V. 21, p. 506
30-10-2 Amended V. 21, p. 508
30-10-6 Amended V. 21, p. 1014
30-10-7 Amended V. 21, p. 509
30-10-11 Amended V. 21, p. 1015
30-10-14 Revoked V. 22, p. 1355
30-10-15a Amended V. 22, p. 1355
30-10-15b Amended V. 21, p. 1018
30-10-17 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 990
30-10-17 Amended V. 22, p. 1233
30-10-18 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 991
30-10-18 Amended V. 22, p. 1234

(continued)
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30-10-19 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 994
30-10-19 Amended V. 22, p. 1236
30-10-21 Amended V. 22, p. 1357
30-10-23a Amended V. 21, p. 2055
30-10-23b Amended V. 22, p. 1357
30-10-24 Amended V. 21, p. 1025
30-10-25 Amended V. 21, p. 1026
30-10-27 Amended V. 21, p. 1027
30-10-29 Revoked V. 21, p. 1028
30-12-16
through
30-12-22 Revoked V. 21, p. 331
30-13-17
through
30-13-26 Revoked V. 21, p. 331
30-14-28 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 84
30-14-28 Amended V. 22, p. 434
30-44-5 New V. 22, p. 1047
30-60-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1090
30-60-2 Amended V. 22, p. 1090
30-60-5 Amended V. 22, p. 1090
30-60-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1091
30-60-7 Amended V. 22, p. 1092
30-60-8 New V. 22, p. 1092
30-60-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1093
30-60-11 Amended V. 22, p. 1093
30-60-12 Amended V. 22, p. 1093
30-60-13 New V. 22, p. 1094
30-60-14 New V. 22, p. 1094
30-60-15 New V. 22, p. 1094
30-60-16 New V. 22, p. 1094
30-60-17 Amended V. 22, p. 1095
30-60-18 Amended V. 22, p. 1095
30-16-19 Amended V. 22, p. 1096
30-60-25 Amended V. 22, p. 1096
30-60-26 Amended V. 22, p. 1097
30-60-27 Amended V. 22, p. 1097
30-60-28 Amended V. 22, p. 1097
30-60-29 New V. 22, p. 1097
30-60-30 New V. 22, p. 1098
30-60-40 Amended V. 22, p. 1098
30-60-41 Amended V. 22, p. 1098
30-60-45 Amended V. 22, p. 1099
30-60-46 Amended V. 22, p. 1099
30-60-47 Amended V. 22, p. 1099
30-60-48 New V. 22, p. 1099
30-60-49 New V. 22, p. 1100
30-60-50 Amended V. 22, p. 1100
30-60-51 New V. 22, p. 1101
30-60-55 Amended V. 22, p. 1102
30-60-56 New V. 22, p. 1103
30-60-57 New V. 22, p. 1103
30-60-60 Revoked V. 22, p. 1103
30-60-61 Revoked V. 22, p. 1103
30-60-62 Amended V. 22, p. 1103
30-60-63 New V. 22, p. 1104
30-60-64 New V. 22, p. 1105
30-60-70 Amended V. 22, p. 1108
30-60-71 Amended V. 22, p. 1108
30-60-72 Amended V. 22, p. 1108
30-60-73 Amended V. 22, p. 1108
30-60-74 Amended V. 22, p. 1109
30-60-75 Revoked V. 22, p. 1109
30-60-76 Amended V. 22, p. 1109
30-61-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1109
30-61-2 Amended V. 22, p. 1109
30-61-5 Amended V. 22, p. 1109
30-61-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1110
30-61-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1110
30-61-11 New V. 22, p. 1110
30-61-15 Amended V. 22, p. 1110
30-61-16 Revoked V. 22, p. 1111
30-64-20 Amended V. 21, p. 80
30-64-22 Amended V. 21, p. 80
30-64-23 Amended V. 21, p. 80
30-64-24 Amended V. 21, p. 1310
30-64-30 Amended V. 21, p. 81
30-64-31 Amended V. 21, p. 81
30-64-32 Amended V. 21, p. 82
30-64-34 Revoked V. 21, p. 82

AGENCY 36: DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Reg. No. Action Register

36-40-1
through
36-40-9 New V. 22, p. 1806, 1807

AGENCY 40: KANSAS INSURANCE
DEPARTMENT

Reg. No. Action Register

40-1-34 Amended V. 21, p. 2131
40-1-43 Amended V. 21, p. 451
40-1-46 Amended V. 21, p. 212
40-1-47 New V. 21, p. 588
40-1-48 Amended V. 22, p. 1709
40-1-49 New V. 21, p. 1703
40-2-22 Revoked V. 21, p. 589
40-4-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1709
40-4-36 Amended V. 22, p. 465
40-4-37 Amended V. 21, p. 741
40-4-37k Amended V. 21, p. 1272
40-4-37q New V. 21, p. 1272
40-4-37s New V. 21, p. 743
40-4-37t New V. 21, p. 1272
40-4-37u New V. 21, p. 1370
40-5-110 Amended V. 22, p. 1709

AGENCY 44: DEPARTMENT OF
CORRECTIONS

Reg. No. Action Register

44-4-103 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-4-104 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-4-106
through
44-4-109 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-5-101 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-5-103 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-5-107
through
44-5-110 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-5-113 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-5-114 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-6-101 Amended V. 21, p. 1406
44-6-106 Amended V. 21, p. 1407
44-6-107 Amended V. 21, p. 1407
44-6-108 Amended V. 21, p. 1408
44-6-114c Amended V. 21, p. 1408
44-6-114d New v. 21, p. 1409
44-6-114e New V. 21, p. 1409
44-6-115 Revoked V. 21, p. 1415
44-6-115a Amended (T) V. 22, p. 383
44-6-115a Amended V. 22, p. 1231
44-6-115b New V. 21, p. 1415
44-6-115c New V. 21, p. 1417
44-6-117 Revoked V. 21, p. 1418
44-6-120 Revoked V. 21, p. 1418
44-6-124 Revoked V. 21, p. 1418
44-6-125 Amended V. 21, p. 1418
44-6-126 Amended V. 21, p. 1419
44-6-133 Revoked V. 21, p. 1419
44-6-134 Amended V. 21, p. 1419
44-6-136 Amended V. 21, p. 1419
44-6-136a Amended V. 21, p. 1420
44-6-137 Amended V. 21, p. 1420
44-6-138 Amended V. 21, p. 1420
44-6-140 Amended V. 21, p. 1421
44-6-140a Amended V. 21, p. 1421
44-6-141 Amended V. 21, p. 1421
44-6-142 Revoked V. 21, p. 1421
44-6-143 Amended V. 21, p. 1421
44-6-146 Revoked V. 21, p. 1422
44-7-102 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-103 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-105 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-106 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-107 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-109 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-112 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-114 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-115 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-7-116 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-8-110
through
44-8-114 Revoked V. 21, p. 309
44-11-111 Amended V. 21, p. 335
44-11-112 Revoked V. 21, p. 336
44-11-113 Amended V. 21, p. 336
44-11-114 Revoked V. 21, p. 336
44-11-115 Revoked V. 21, p. 336
44-11-119 Amended V. 21, p. 336
44-11-120 Amended V. 21, p. 336

44-11-121 Amended V. 21, p. 337
44-11-122 Revoked V. 21, p. 337
44-11-123 Amended V. 21, p. 337
44-11-124 Revoked V. 21, p. 337
44-11-127 Amended V. 21, p. 337
44-11-129 Amended V. 21, p. 338
44-11-130 Amended V. 21, p. 338
44-11-131 Amended V. 21, p. 339
44-11-132 Amended V. 21, p. 339
44-11-133 Amended V. 21, p. 339
44-11-135 Amended V. 21, p. 339
44-12-103 Amended V. 21, p. 117
44-12-105 Amended V. 21, p. 117
44-12-106 Amended V. 21, p. 117
44-12-107 Amended V. 21, p. 117
44-12-201
through
44-12-205 Amended V. 21, p. 118
44-12-210 Amended V. 21, p. 118
44-12-303 Amended V. 21, p. 118
44-12-305 Amended V. 21, p. 118
44-12-306 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-307 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-309 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-310 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-312 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-313 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-314 Amended V. 21, p. 119
44-12-318 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-320 Revoked V. 21, p. 120
44-12-321 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-325 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-326 Revoked V. 21, p. 120
44-12-327 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-328 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-401 Amended V. 21, p. 120
44-12-501 Amended V. 21, p. 121
44-12-503 Amended V. 21, p. 121
44-12-504 Amended V. 21, p. 121
44-12-505b Amended V. 21, p. 121
44-12-601 Amended V. 21, p. 121
44-12-602 Amended V. 21, p. 123
44-12-702 Amended V. 21, p. 123
44-12-801 Amended V. 21, p. 123
44-12-902 Amended V. 21, p. 123
44-12-1002 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 384
44-12-1002 Amended V. 22, p. 1232
44-12-1306 Amended V. 21, p. 123
44-12-1307 Amended V. 21, p. 124
44-13-101 Amended V. 21, p. 151
44-13-104 Revoked V. 21, p. 151
44-13-105 Amended V. 21, p. 151
44-13-106 Amended V. 21, p. 151
44-13-201 Amended V. 21, p. 152
44-13-201b Amended (T) V. 22, p. 384
44-13-201b Amended V. 22, p. 1232
44-13-202 Amended V. 21, p. 153
44-13-302a Revoked V. 21, p. 153
44-13-304 Revoked V. 21, p. 153
44-13-306 New V. 21, p. 154
44-13-307 New V. 21, p. 154
44-13-401 Amended V. 21, p. 154
44-13-401a Revoked V. 21, p. 154
44-13-402 Amended V. 21, p. 154
44-13-403 Amended V. 21, p. 155
44-13-404 Amended V. 21, p. 156
44-13-405a Amended V. 21, p. 157
44-13-406 Amended V. 21, p. 158
44-13-408 Amended V. 21, p. 158
44-13-409 Amended V. 21, p. 158
44-13-501 Amended V. 21, p. 158
44-13-502a Amended V. 21, p. 158
44-13-506
through
44-13-509 Amended V. 21, p. 158, 159
44-13-601 Amended V. 21, p. 159
44-13-603 Amended V. 21, p. 159
44-13-610 Amended V. 21, p. 159
44-13-701
through
44-13-704 Amended V. 21, p. 159, 160
44-13-705 Revoked V. 21, p. 161
44-13-706 Amended V. 21, p. 161
44-13-707 Amended V. 21, p. 161
44-14-101 Revoked V. 21, p. 83
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44-14-102 Revoked V. 21, p. 83
44-14-201 Revoked V. 21, p. 83
44-14-202 Revoked V. 21, p. 83
44-14-301
through
44-14-318 Revoked V. 21, p. 83
44-15-101 Amended V. 21, p. 84
44-15-101a Amended V. 21, p. 84
44-15-102 Amended V. 21, p. 85
44-15-201 Amended V. 21, p. 86
44-16-102 Amended V. 21, p. 86
44-16-103 Revoked V. 21, p. 86
44-16-104 Revoked V. 21, p. 86
44-16-105 Amended V. 21, p. 86
44-16-106 Revoked V. 21, p. 86
44-16-107 Revoked V. 21, p. 86
44-16-108 Revoked V. 21, p. 86

AGENCY 45: KANSAS PAROLE BOARD

Reg. No. Action Register

45-1-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-4-4
through
45-4-7 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-4-9 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-6-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-6-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-6-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-6-5 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-7-1
through
45-7-5 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-9-1
through
45-9-4 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-10-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1894
45-11-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1895
45-14-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1895
45-16-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 1895
45-16-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 1895
45-16-4 Revoked V. 21, p. 1895
45-100-1 New V. 21, p. 1895
45-200-1 New V. 21, p. 1895
45-200-2 New V. 21, p. 1896
45-300-1 New V. 21, p. 1896
45-300-2 New V. 21, p. 1896
45-400-1
through
45-400-4 New V. 21, p. 1896, 1897
45-500-1
through
45-500-4 New V. 21, p. 1897, 1898
45-600-1 New V. 21, p. 1899
45-700-1 New (T) V. 21, p. 1328
45-700-1 New V. 21, p. 1900
45-700-2 New (T) V. 21, p. 1328
45-700-2 New V. 21, p. 1900
45-800-1 New V. 21, p. 1900
45-900-1 New V. 21, p. 1901
45-1000-1 New V. 21, p. 1901
45-1000-2 New V. 21, p. 1901
45-1000-3 New V. 21, p. 1901

AGENCY 51: DEPARTMENT OF
HUMAN RESOURCES—DIVISION OF

WORKERS COMPENSATION

Reg. No. Action Register

51-2-6 New V. 21, p. 864
51-3-1
through
51-3-4 Amended V. 21, p. 864-865
51-9-7 Amended V. 22, p. 1804
51-9-12
through
51-9-14 Revoked V. 21, p. 865
51-9-15 New V. 21, p. 1224
51-9-16 New V. 21, p. 1271
51-10-6 Revoked V. 21, p. 865
51-17-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 865
51-24-1 Amended V. 21, p. 865
51-24-3 Amended V. 21, p. 865
51-24-4 Amended V. 21, p. 866

AGENCY 60: BOARD OF NURSING

Reg. No. Action Register

60-1-104 Amended V. 22, p. 42
60-2-101
through
60-2-106 Amended V. 22, p. 43-47
60-2-108 Amended V. 22, p. 47
60-3-106 Amended V. 21, p. 840
60-3-110 Amended V. 21, p. 1764
60-3-112 Amended V. 21, p. 1764
60-4-103 Amended V. 21, p. 841
60-9-105 Amended V. 21, p. 1765
60-9-107 Amended V. 21, p. 1765
60-11-116 Amended V. 21, p. 316
60-11-121 Amended V. 21, p. 1767
60-13-103 Amended V. 21, p. 316
60-13-110 Amended V. 21, p. 317
60-16-101 Amended V. 21, p. 841
60-16-102 Amended V. 22, p. 47
60-16-103 Amended V. 21, p. 842
60-16-104 Amended V. 21, p. 842

AGENCY 61: BOARD OF BARBERING

Reg. No. Action Register

61-4-2 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1304
61-7-1 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1304

AGENCY 63: BOARD OF MORTUARY ARTS

Reg. No. Action Register

63-1-23 New V. 21, p. 659
63-3-22 New V. 21, p. 659
63-3-23 New V. 21, p. 659
63-4-1 Amended V. 21, p. 659
63-7-1
through
63-7-8 New V. 21, p. 660-662

AGENCY 65: BOARD OF EXAMINERS
IN OPTOMETRY

Reg. No. Action Register

65-4-3 Amended V. 21, p. 183
65-5-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1575

AGENCY 66: BOARD OF TECHNICAL
PROFESSIONS

Reg. No. Action Register

66-8-4 Amended V. 21, p. 1789
66-9-5 Amended V. 21, p. 1789
66-10-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1789
66-10-9 Amended V. 21, p. 1789
66-10-10b New V. 21, p. 1789
66-10-13 Amended V. 21, p. 1790
66-11-1a New V. 21, p. 1790
66-11-1b New V. 21, p. 1790
66-11-5 New V. 21, p. 1790
66-14-6 Amended V. 21, p. 1790

AGENCY 68: BOARD OF PHARMACY

Reg. No. Action Register

68-1-1a Amended V. 21, p. 746
68-1-1e Revoked V. 21, p. 308
68-1-2a Amended V. 21, p. 746
68-1-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 308
68-1-3a Amended V. 21, p. 746
68-2-5 Amended V. 21, p. 308
68-2-9 Amended V. 22, p. 118
68-2-10 Amended V. 22, p. 118
68-2-11 Amended V. 22, p. 118
68-2-12a Amended V. 22, p. 118
68-2-15 Amended V. 22, p. 430
68-2-20 Amended V. 22, p. 119
68-7-12 Amended V. 22, p. 119
68-7-12a Amended V. 22, p. 120
68-7-12b New V. 22, p. 120
68-8-1 Amended V. 22, p. 431
68-9-1 Amended V. 21, p. 308
68-9-2 Amended V. 22, p. 121
68-11-1 Amended V. 22, p. 122
68-11-2 Amended V. 22, p. 122
68-12-2 Amended V. 22, p. 122
68-13-1 Amended V. 22, p. 122

AGENCY 74: BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY

Reg. No. Action Register

74-1-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1894
74-1-2 Amended V. 22, p. 1894
74-1-3 Amended V. 22, p. 1894
74-1-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1895
74-1-8 New V. 22, p. 1895
74-2-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1896
74-2-4 Revoked V. 22, p. 1896
74-4-7 Amended V. 22, p. 1896
74-4-8 Amended V. 22, p. 1896
74-4-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1897
74-5-101 Amended V. 21, p. 1868
74-5-102 Amended V. 21, p. 1868
74-5-202 Amended V. 22, p. 1898
74-5-302 Amended V. 21, p. 1869
74-5-401 Amended V. 21, p. 1869
74-5-406 Amended V. 21, p. 1869
74-7-4 New V. 21, p. 1870
74-11-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1898
74-11-7 Amended V. 22, p. 1898
74-12-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1898

AGENCY 75: STATE BANK
COMMISSIONER—DIVISION OF CONSUMER

AND MORTGAGE LENDING

Reg. No. Action Register

75-6-33 New V. 22, p. 1815
75-6-34 New V. 22, p. 1454

AGENCY 82: STATE CORPORATION
COMMISSION

Reg. No. Action Register

82-1-201 Revoked V. 22, p. 1650
82-1-202 Amended V. 22, p. 1650
82-1-204 Amended V. 22, p. 1650
82-1-204a New V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-205 Amended V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-206 Amended V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-207 Amended V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-208 Amended V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-212 Amended V. 22, p. 1652
82-1-214 Amended V. 22, p. 1653
82-1-215 Amended V. 22, p. 1653
82-1-216 Amended V. 22, p. 1653
82-1-218 Amended V. 22, p. 1653
82-1-219 Amended V. 22, p. 1654
82-1-220 Amended V. 22, p. 1655
82-1-220a New V. 22, p. 39
82-1-221 Amended V. 22, p. 1655
82-1-221b Revoked V. 22, p. 1656
82-1-222 Amended V. 22, p. 1656
82-1-224 Amended V. 22, p. 1656
82-1-225 Amended V. 22, p. 1656
82-1-226 Amended V. 22, p. 1657
82-1-227 Amended V. 22, p. 1657
82-1-228 Amended V. 22, p. 1657
82-1-229 Amended V. 22, p. 1658
82-1-230 Amended V. 22, p. 1659
82-1-230a New V. 22, p. 1659
82-1-231 Amended V. 22, p. 1660
82-1-231a Amended V. 22, p. 1663
82-1-231b Amended V. 22, p. 1664
82-1-232 Amended V. 22, p. 1665
82-1-235 Amended V. 22, p. 1666
82-1-237 Amended V. 22, p. 1666
82-1-238 Amended V. 22, p. 1666
82-1-239 Amended V. 22, p. 1667
82-3-105 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1175
82-3-105 Amended V. 21, p. 1750
82-3-113 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1175
82-3-113 Amended V. 21, p. 1750
82-3-114 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1176
82-3-114 Amended V. 21, p. 1751
82-3-117 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1176
82-3-117 Amended V. 21, p. 1751
82-3-120 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1176
82-3-120 Amended V. 21, p. 1751
82-3-311 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1178
82-3-311 Amended V. 21, p. 1753
82-3-312 Amended V. 21, p. 117
82-3-400 Amended V. 21, p. 383

(continued)



2016 Index to RegulationsKansas Register

� Kansas Secretary of State 2003 Vol. 22, No. 47, November 20, 2003

82-3-401 Amended V. 21, p. 383
82-3-401a Revoked V. 21, p. 384
82-3-401b Revoked V. 21, p. 384
82-3-402
through
82-3-410 Amended V. 21, p. 384-389
82-3-411 New V. 21, p. 389
82-3-412 New V. 21, p. 390
82-3-1000
through
82-3-1012 New (T) V. 21, p. 1178-1188
82-3-1000
through
82-3-1012 New V. 21, p. 1753-1763
82-4-2 Amended V. 22, p. 86
82-4-20 Amended V. 22, p. 86
82-4-21 Amended V. 22, p. 87
82-4-22 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1329
82-4-22 Amended V. 21, p. 1702
82-4-23 Amended V. 22, p. 87
82-4-26 Amended V. 22, p. 87
82-4-26a Amended V. 22, p. 88
82-4-27 Amended V. 22, p. 88
82-4-27a Amended V. 22, p. 88
82-4-27e Amended V. 22, p. 89
82-4-28 Amended V. 22, p. 89
82-4-28a Amended V. 22, p. 89
82-4-29 Amended V. 22, p. 90
82-4-29a Amended V. 22, p. 90
82-4-30a Amended V. 22, p. 90
82-4-32 Amended V. 22, p. 90
82-4-35 Amended V. 22, p. 91
82-4-46 Amended V. 22, p. 91
82-4-49b
through
82-4-49e Revoked V. 22, p. 91
82-7-2
through
82-7-5 Revoked V. 22, p. 91
82-8-1 Amended V. 22, p. 91
82-8-2 Amended V. 22, p. 91
82-8-3 Amended V. 22, p. 92
82-11-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1078
82-11-3 Amended V. 22, p. 1079
82-11-4 Amended V. 22, p. 1079
82-11-8 Amended V. 22, p. 1084
82-11-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1084
82-13-1 New V. 22, p. 40
82-13-2 New V. 22, p. 40

AGENCY 86: REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

Reg. No. Action Register

86-1-19 New V. 21, p. 1814
86-3-15 Amended V. 21, p. 1814

AGENCY 88: BOARD OF REGENTS

Reg. No. Action Register

88-5-1
through
88-5-4 Revoked V. 21, p. 1705
88-6-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 1705
88-6-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 1705
88-6-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 1705
88-16-1a Revoked (T) V. 21, p. 501
88-16-1a Revoked V. 21, p. 1166
88-16-1b New (T) V. 21, p. 501
88-16-1b New V. 21, p. 1166
88-23-7 New V. 22, p. 1709
88-24-1 New V. 21, p. 1705
88-24-2 New V. 21, p. 1705

AGENCY 91: DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Reg. No. Action Register

91-1-146a
through
91-1-146e Revoked V. 21, p. 178
91-1-200
through
91-1-204 Amended V. 21, p. 1445-1453
91-1-205 Amended V. 21, p. 1583
91-1-206 Amended V. 21, p. 178
91-1-207 Amended V. 21, p. 1453

91-1-212
through
91-1-214 New V. 21, p. 1453-1456
91-1-215
through
91-1-219 New V. 21, p. 178-180
91-10-1a* Revoked V. 21, p. 1705
91-10-2* Revoked V. 21, p. 1705

(*By Board of Regents)
91-31-16
through
91-31-30 Revoked V. 22, p. 124
91-31-31
through
91-31-42 New V. 22, p. 124-128
91-32-1
through
91-32-9 Revoked V. 21, p. 1867
91-38-1 Amended V. 22, p. 356
91-38-2 Amended V. 22, p. 356
91-38-3 Amended V. 22, p. 357
91-38-5 Amended V. 22, p. 357
91-38-6 Amended V. 22, p. 358
91-38-7 Amended V. 22, p. 360

AGENCY 92: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Reg. No. Action Register

92-1-1 Revoked V. 21, p. 332
92-1-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 332
92-1-3 Revoked V. 21, p. 332
92-5-4 Revoked V. 21, p. 312
92-5-5
through
92-5-10 Amended V. 21, p. 312, 313
92-5-11 Revoked V. 21, p. 313
92-5-12 Amended V. 21, p. 313
92-5-13 Amended V. 21, p. 313
92-8-20 Revoked V. 21, p. 332
92-9-1 Amended V. 21, p. 332
92-9-3 Amended V. 21, p. 332
92-9-4 Amended V. 21, p. 332
92-9-5 Amended V. 21, p. 332
92-9-7 Revoked V. 21, p. 332
92-11-1
through
92-11-16 Revoked V. 21, p. 332, 333
92-12-4 Amended V. 21, p. 586
92-12-11 Amended V. 21, p. 586
92-12-29 Revoked V. 21, p. 586
92-12-47 Amended V. 21, p. 586
92-12-56 Revoked V. 21, p. 587
92-12-58 Amended V. 21, p. 587
92-12-67 Amended V. 21, p. 587
92-12-68 Revoked V. 21, p. 587
92-12-105 Amended V. 21, p. 587
92-12-106 Amended V. 21, p. 587
92-12a-1
through
92-12a-23 Revoked V. 21, p. 333, 334
92-14-4
through
92-14-9 Amended V. 21, p. 334, 335
92-15-3 Amended V. 21, p. 335
92-15-4 Amended V. 21, p. 335
92-15-8 Amended V. 21, p. 335
92-17-1
through
92-17-6 Amended V. 21, p. 313, 314
92-18-1
through
92-18-7 Revoked V. 21, p. 1307
92-19-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 1311
92-19-2a New V. 21, p. 1311
92-19-5 Revoked V. 21, p. 1997
92-19-5a New V. 21, p. 1997
92-19-6 Revoked V. 21, p. 1312
92-19-6a New V. 21, p. 1312
92-19-22 Revoked V. 21, p. 1998
92-19-22a New V. 21, p. 1998
92-19-22b New V. 21, p. 1999
92-19-23 Revoked V. 21, p. 2000
92-19-23a New V. 21, p. 2000
92-19-35a New V. 21, p. 1312
92-19-50 Revoked V. 21, p. 2000

92-19-55 Revoked V. 21, p. 1313
92-19-55a New V. 21, p. 1313
92-19-57 Amended V. 21, p. 2000
92-19-61 Revoked V. 21, p. 1315
92-19-61a New V. 21, p. 1315
92-19-81 New V. 21, p. 2001
92-19-82 New V. 21, p. 1316
92-19-200
through
92-19-203 New V. 22, p. 431
92-20-11 Revoked V. 21, p. 1318
92-22-4 Amended V. 21, p. 450
92-22-19 Revoked V. 21, p. 450
92-22-22 Revoked V. 21, p. 450
92-22-23 Amended V. 21, p. 450
92-22-24 Revoked V. 21, p. 450
92-22-25 Amended V. 21, p. 450
92-22-33 New V. 21, p. 450
92-22-34 New V. 21, p. 450
92-23-10 Amended V. 21, p. 180
92-23-15 Amended V. 21, p. 180
92-23-16 Amended V. 21, p. 180
92-23-17
through
92-23-23 New V. 21, p. 181
92-23-25 New V. 21, p. 181
92-23-30 New V. 21, p. 181
92-23-31 New V. 21, p. 182
92-23-38 Amended V. 21, p. 182
92-23-38a Amended V. 21, p. 182
92-23-40 Amended V. 21, p. 182
92-24-9
through
92-24-15 Amended V. 21, p. 314, 315
92-24-18 Amended V. 21, p. 315
92-24-22 Amended V. 21, p. 316
92-24-24 Amended V. 21, p. 316
92-51-21 Amended V. 21, p. 2092
92-51-23 Amended V. 21, p. 2092
92-51-24 Amended V. 21, p. 2092
92-51-27 Amended V. 21, p. 2092
92-51-34 Revoked V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-38 Amended V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-39 Amended V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-41 Amended V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-53 Amended V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-56 Amended V. 21, p. 2093
92-51-57 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-51-58 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-51-60 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-51-61 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-52-2 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-52-3 Amended V. 21, p. 2094
92-52-8 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-52-11 Revoked V. 21, p. 2094
92-56-1
through
92-56-5 Amended V. 21, p. 1057-1059

AGENCY 93: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE—
DIVISION OF PROPERTY VALUATION

Reg. No. Action Register

93-6-4 Amended V. 22, p. 666
93-6-7 New V. 22, p. 666

AGENCY 94: BOARD OF TAX APPEALS

Reg. No. Action Register

94-2-1
through
94-2-18 Amended V. 21, p. 703-708
94-2-4 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1504
94-2-19 New V. 21, p. 708
94-2-19 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1504
94-2-20 New V. 21, p. 708
94-2-20 Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1504
94-2-21 New (T) V. 22, p. 1505
94-3-1 Amended V. 21, p. 709
94-3-2 Amended V. 21, p. 709
94-4-1 New V. 21, p. 710
94-4-2 New V. 21, p. 710

AGENCY 100: BOARD OF HEALING ARTS

Reg. No. Action Register

100-11-1 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1131
100-11-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1864
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100-22-4 New V. 22, p. 690
100-27-1 Amended V. 21, p. 307
100-28a-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1864
100-29-7 Amended V. 21, p. 1864
100-29-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1892
100-29-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1893
100-49-1 Amended V. 21, p. 2137
100-49-4 Amended (T) V. 21, p. 1131
100-49-4 Amended V. 21, p. 1864
100-49-6
through
100-49-9 New V. 21, p. 2137
100-54-2
through
100-54-8 Amended V. 22, p. 1926-1929
100-55-4 Amended V. 21, p. 2138
100-55-5 Amended V. 22, p. 690
100-55-9 Amended V. 22, p. 690
100-69-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1864
100-69-9 Amended V. 21, p. 1865
100-69-10 Amended V. 21, p. 1865
100-69-11 Amended V. 21, p. 1866
100-72-1
through
100-72-7 New (T) V. 22, p. 79-81
100-72-1
through
100-72-6 New V. 22, p. 691, 692
100-72-7 New V. 22, p. 1893
100-75-1 New (T) V. 22, p. 82
100-75-1 New V. 22, p. 693

AGENCY 102: BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES
REGULATORY BOARD

Reg. No. Action Register

102-1-3a Amended (T) V. 22, p. 1267
102-1-3a Amended V. 22, p. 1808
102-1-3b New (T) V. 22, p. 1268
102-1-3b New V. 22, p. 1809
102-1-8 Amended V. 22, p. 1148
102-1-15 Amended V. 22, p. 1149
102-2-2b New (T) V. 22, p. 1269
102-2-2b New V. 22, p. 1810
102-2-2c New (T) V. 22, p. 1270
102-2-2c New V. 22, p. 1811
102-2-3 Amended V. 21, p. 237
102-2-4a Amended V. 22, p. 1150
102-2-4b Amended V. 21, p. 238
102-2-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1151
102-2-11 Amended V. 22, p. 1151
102-2-12 Amended V. 22, p. 1084
102-3-3a Amended V. 21, p. 1302
102-3-4a Amended V. 21, p. 1133
102-3-4b New (T) V. 22, p. 1271
102-3-4b New V. 22, p. 1811
102-3-6a Revoked V. 21, p. 1134
102-3-7a Amended V. 22, p. 1085
102-3-9a Amended V. 22, p. 1151
102-3-10a Amended V. 22, p. 1152
102-3-12a Amended V. 21, p. 1134
102-3-17 New V. 21, p. 1137
102-4-4b New (T) V. 22, p. 1272
102-4-46 New V. 22, p. 1812
102-4-9a Amended V. 22, p. 1153
102-4-10a Amended V. 22, p. 1153
102-5-3 Amended V. 22, p. 1087
102-5-4b New (T) V. 22, p. 1273
102-5-4b New V. 22, p. 1813
102-5-7a Amended V. 22, p. 1088
102-5-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1155
102-5-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1155
102-5-12 Amended V. 22, p. 1156
102-5-16 New V. 22, p. 1158
102-6-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1159
102-6-10 Amended V. 22, p. 1159

AGENCY 108: STATE EMPLOYEES
HEALTH CARE COMMISSION

Reg. No. Action Register

108-1-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1055
108-1-4 Amended V. 22, p. 360

AGENCY 109: BOARD OF
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Reg. No. Action Register

109-5-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1368
109-5-4 Amended V. 22, p. 1805
109-6-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1369
109-7-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1805

AGENCY 110: DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Reg. No. Action Register

110-10-1 New (T) V. 22, p. 1815

AGENCY 111: KANSAS LOTTERY
A complete index listing all regulations filed by

the Kansas Lottery from 1988 through 2000 can be
found in the Vol. 19, No. 52, December 28, 2000
Kansas Register. The regulations listed below were
published after December 31, 2000.
Reg. No. Action Register
111-2-1 Amended V. 22, p. 585
111-2-4 Amended V. 20, p. 1094
111-2-119
through
111-2-124 New V. 20, p. 416-419
111-2-120 Amended V. 20, p. 1094
111-2-124 Amended V. 21, p. 590
111-2-125 New V. 20, p. 573
111-2-126 New V. 20, p. 573
111-2-127 Amended V. 20, p. 937
111-2-128 New V. 20, p. 1188
111-2-129 New V. 20, p. 1343
111-2-130 New V. 20, p. 1394
111-2-131 New V. 20, p. 1778
111-2-132 New V. 20, p. 1901
111-2-133 New V. 20, p. 1901
111-2-134 New V. 20, p. 1901
111-2-135 New V. 21, p. 590
111-2-136 New V. 21, p. 590
111-2-137 New V. 21, p. 649
111-2-138 New V. 21, p. 692
111-2-139 New V. 21, p. 747
111-2-140 New V. 21, p. 1521
111-2-141 New V. 21, p. 1852
111-2-142 New V. 21, p. 1852
111-2-143 New V. 22, p. 585
111-2-144 New V. 22, p. 804
111-2-144a New V. 22, p. 586
111-2-145 New V. 22, p. 804
111-2-146 New V. 22, p. 804
111-2-147 New V. 22, p. 804
111-2-148 Amended V. 22, p. 1704
111-2-149 New V. 22, p. 1741
111-3-12 Amended V. 20, p. 40
111-3-27 Amended V. 22, p. 660
111-3-35 Amended V. 20, p. 1189
111-4-1447 Amended V. 22, p. 1667
111-4-1448 Amended V. 21, p. 1521
111-4-1795
through
111-4-1813 New V. 20, p. 40-47
111-4-1801 Amended V. 20, p. 1095
111-4-1803 Amended V. 22, p. 1667
111-4-1805a New V. 20, p. 1095
111-4-1814
through
111-4-1823 New V. 20, p. 419-427
111-4-1818 Amended V. 20, p. 575
111-4-1824 New V. 20, p. 575
111-4-1825
through
111-4-1839 New V. 20, p. 937-942
111-4-1828 Amended V. 20, p. 1096
111-4-1832 Amended V. 20, p. 1344
111-4-1840
through
111-4-1844 New V. 20, p. 1096-1100
111-4-1845
through
111-4-1850 New V. 20, p. 1189-1193
111-4-1849 Amended V. 20, p. 1344
111-4-1851 New V. 20, p. 1345
111-4-1852 New V. 20, p. 1346
111-4-1853 New V. 20, p. 1347

111-4-1854
through
111-4-1870 New V. 20, p. 1395-1405
111-4-1864 Amended V. 20, p. 1569
111-4-1866 Amended V. 20, p. 1570
111-4-1867 Amended V. 20, p. 1601
111-4-1869 Amended V. 20, p. 1601
111-4-1871 New V. 20, p. 1571
111-4-1872 New V. 20, p. 1572
111-4-1873 New V. 20, p. 1572
111-4-1874
through
111-4-1877 New V. 20, p. 1779-1781
111-4-1877 Amended V. 20, p. 1902
111-4-1878
through
111-4-1885 New V. 20, p. 1902-1906
111-4-1886
through
111-4-1889 New V. 21, p. 183-185
111-4-1890
through
111-4-1893 New V. 21, p. 591-593
111-4-1894
through
111-4-1900 New V. 21, p. 649-655
111-4-1894 Amended V. 21, p. 1276
111-4-1901
through
111-4-1921 New V. 21, p. 692-702
111-4-1910 Amended V. 21, p. 747
111-4-1911 Amended V. 21, p. 747
111-4-1913 Amended V. 21, p. 748
111-4-1922 New V. 21, p. 748
111-4-1923 New V. 21, p. 749
111-4-1924
through
111-4-1932 New V. 21, p. 1329-1337
111-4-1929 Amended V. 21, p. 1522
111-4-1933
through
111-4-1938 New V. 21, p. 1523-1526
111-4-1938 Amended V. 21, p. 1852
111-4-1939
through
111-4-1945 New V. 21, p. 1854-1857
111-4-1946
through
111-4-1951 New V. 22, p. 48-52
111-4-1952
through
111-4-1964 New V. 22, p. 439-448
111-4-1964 Amended V. 22, p. 982
111-4-1965
through
111-4-1975 New V. 22, p. 586-593
111-4-1970 Amended V. 22, p. 1047
111-4-1975 Revoked V. 22, p. 1047
111-4-1976
through
111-4-1986 New V. 22, p. 660-665
111-4-1987
through
111-4-2009 New V. 22, p. 804-820
111-4-2010
through
111-4-2014 New V. 22, p. 854-857
111-4-2015
through
111-4-2027 New V. 22, p. 983-990
111-4-2023 Amended V. 22, p. 1048
111-4-2026 Amended V. 22, p. 1048
111-4-2028
through
111-4-2033 New V. 22, p. 1048-1053
111-4-2034
through
111-4-2041 New V. 22, p. 1668-1674
111-4-2042
through
111-4-2048 New V. 22, p. 1704-1707
111-4-2049
through
111-4-2057 New V. 22, p. 1741-1744

(continued)
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111-4-2058
through
111-4-2064 New V. 22, p. 1850-1853
111-4-2058 Amended V. 22, p. 1899
111-4-2059 Amended V. 22, p. 1899
111-4-2060 Amended V. 22, p. 1899
111-4-2061 Amended V. 22, p. 1900
111-4-2065
through
111-4-2070 New V. 22, p. 1935-1939
111-5-22 Amended V. 21, p. 1758
111-5-23 Amended V. 21, p. 1858
111-5-24 Amended V. 21, p. 1858
111-5-26 Amended V. 21, p. 1859
111-5-27 Amended V. 21, p. 1860
111-5-28 Amended V. 21, p. 1860
111-5-30 Amended V. 21, p. 1529
111-5-32 Amended V. 21, p. 1861
111-5-33 Amended V. 21, p. 1861
111-5-78 Amended V. 21, p. 751
111-5-79
through
111-5-91 New V. 21, p. 1278-1281
111-5-81 Amended V. 22, p. 1853
111-5-82 Amended V. 21, p. 1529
111-5-83 Amended V. 21, p. 1529
111-5-92
through
111-5-98 New V. 21, p. 1339-1341
111-5-94 Amended V. 22, p. 1707
111-5-96 Amended V. 22, p. 1707
111-5-97 Amended V. 22, p. 1708
111-5-99
through
111-5-103 New V. 22, p. 593, 594
111-5-104 New V. 22, p. 857
111-5-105 Amended V. 22, p. 1054
111-5-106
through
111-5-110 Amended V. 22, p. 1854, 1855
111-6-5 Amended V. 21, p. 1531
111-6-25 New V. 22, p. 1054
111-7-119
through
111-7-127 Amended V. 21, p. 594-597
111-7-123 Amended V. 21, p. 1531
111-7-126 Amended V. 21, p. 1532
111-7-134 Amended V. 20, p. 429
111-7-152 Amended V. 20, p. 49
111-7-158
through
111-7-162 New V. 20, p. 577
111-7-159 Amended V. 20, p. 1101
111-7-162 Amended V. 20, p. 944
111-7-163
through
111-7-170 New V. 20, p. 1101-1103

111-7-165 Amended V. 20, p. 1194
111-7-171
through
111-7-175 New V. 20, p. 1782, 1783
111-7-176
through
111-7-180 New V. 21, p. 656, 657
111-7-181 New V. 21, p. 1563
111-7-182
through
111-7-186 New V. 21, p. 1861-1862
111-7-182 Amended V. 22, p. 53
111-7-184 Amended V. 22, p. 53
111-7-187 New V. 22, p. 1855
111-8-101
through
111-8-126 New V. 20, p. 1573-1579
111-9-111 New V. 20, p. 1406
111-9-112 Amended V. 20, p. 1579
111-9-113 Amended V. 21, p. 186
111-9-114 New V. 21, p. 657
111-9-115 New V. 21, p. 702
111-9-116 New V. 21, p. 703
111-9-117 New V. 21, p. 1533
111-9-118 New V. 22, p. 54
111-9-119 New V. 22, p. 54
111-9-120 New V. 22, p. 1054
111-9-121 New V. 22, p. 1054

AGENCY 112: RACING AND GAMING
COMMISSION

Reg. No. Action Register

112-3-11 Amended V. 22, p. 1427
112-4-1a New V. 22, p. 278
112-4-1b New V. 22, p. 279
112-6-4 Amended V. 22, p. 85
112-8-4 Amended V. 22, p. 1428
112-8-5 Amended V. 22, p. 1428
112-9-44 Amended V. 22, p. 279
112-10-2 Amended V. 22, p. 85
112-11-20 Amended V. 22, p. 281
112-12-10 Amended V. 22, p. 86
112-18-9 Amended V. 22, p. 1710
112-18-11 Amended V. 22, p. 1710
112-18-18 Amended V. 22, p. 1710

AGENCY 115: DEPARTMENT OF
WILDLIFE AND PARKS

Reg. No. Action Register

115-1-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1930
115-2-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1932
115-2-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1558
115-2-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1558
115-2-6 Amended V. 21, p. 451
115-4-4 Amended V. 21, p. 452
115-4-6 Amended V. 22, p. 1227

115-4-11 Amended V. 22, p. 436
115-5-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1137
115-5-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1138
115-5-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1138
115-7-1 Amended V. 21, p. 1558
115-7-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1559
115-7-7 New V. 21, p. 1559
115-9-4 Amended V. 21, p. 177
115-11-1 Amended V. 21, p. 177
115-11-2 Amended V. 21, p. 177
115-13-3 Amended V. 21, p. 1560
115-13-4 Amended V. 21, p. 1560
115-16-5 New V. 21, p. 1138
115-16-6 New V. 21, p. 1139
115-17-6
through
115-17-9 Amended V. 22, p. 437-439
115-17-11 Amended V. 21, p. 1561
115-17-12 Amended V. 21, p. 1562
115-17-13 Amended V. 21, p. 1562
115-17-14 Amended V. 21, p. 1890
115-18-7 Amended V. 21, p. 453
115-18-8 Amended V. 22, p. 1229
115-18-10 Amended V. 22, p. 439
115-18-13 Amended V. 21, p. 1562
115-18-14 Amended V. 21, p. 1563
115-20-2 Amended V. 21, p. 1891
115-21-1 Amended V. 22, p. 1506
115-21-2 Amended V. 22, p. 1507
115-30-8 Amended V. 21, p. 1891

AGENCY 117: REAL ESTATE
APPRAISAL BOARD

Reg. No. Action Register

117-1-1 Amended V. 22, p. 684
117-2-1 Amended V. 22, p. 684
117-3-1 Amended V. 22, p. 685
117-4-1 Amended V. 22, p. 686
117-6-1 Amended V. 22, p. 687
117-6-2 Amended V. 22, p. 688
117-6-3 Amended V. 22, p. 688
117-8-1 Amended V. 22, p. 689

AGENCY 118: STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Reg. No. Action Register

118-5-1
through
118-5-10 New V. 21, p. 1205-1208

AGENCY 126: UNMARKED BURIAL SITES
PRESERVATION BOARD

Reg. No. Action Register

126-1-1 New V. 21, p. 1792
126-1-2 New V. 21, p. 1792


